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32  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Day : Friday
rdDate : 23  September, 2022.  

Time : 11.30 a.m.

Through Video Conferencing (VC) / 
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM)



NOTICE is hereby given that the 32nd Annual General Meeting of the Members of VIP Clothing Limited will be held on Friday, 23rd day of 
September, 2022 at 11.30 a.m. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 and the Reports of 
the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Kapil J. Pathare (DIN: 01089517), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

NOTES:

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its circular No.  2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, in continuation to its previous General 
Circulars (including General Circular No. 21/2021 dtd. 14th December, 2021) issued in respect to allowing Companies to hold AGM 
through video conferencing or other audio-visual means, has allowed the companies to organize AGM through Video Conferencing / 
Other Audio Visual Means in the year 2022 on or before 31st December, 2022 in accordance with the requirements laid down in Para 
3 & 4 of General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated 05.05.2020.

2. Since the AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility 
for appointment of proxies will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip including Route Map are 
not annexed to this Notice.

3. In accordance with, the Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 issued by MCA and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ 
CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 issued by SEBI, owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the 
financial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents required to be attached therewith), 
such statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode to Members whose e-mail address is registered with 
the Company or the Depository Participant(s).

4. Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the 
Act.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, September 16, 2022 to Friday, 
September 23, 2022. (both days inclusive) 

6. Link Intime India Private Limited (“LIIPL”) will be providing facility for voting through remote e-Voting, participation in the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility and e-Voting during the AGM.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time (“Rules”), the Company is 
mandatorily required to transfer all such shares respect of which dividend(s) has not been en-cashed or claimed by the 
shareholder(s) for last 7 (Seven) consecutive years or more to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority set up by the Central 
Government.  A list of such shareholders is displayed on the website of the Company www.vipclothing.in. The Company has also 
sent individual communication through its RTA to the concerned shareholders. 

In view of this, Members are requested to claim their unclaimed dividend from the Company which was declared in FY 2014-15 
immediately but not later than September 24, 2022 failing which the above shares will get transferred to Demat Account of IEPF 
Authority.

Unclaimed dividend and shares which are transferred to IEPF authority earlier can be claimed by making an application to the IEPF 
Authority in Form No. IEPF - 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 12, 2022 

By order of the Board of Directors
For VIP Clothing Limited

Sd/-                                                                                                   
Sunil J. Pathare

                   Chairman & Managing Director
  (DIN: 00192182)



8. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every securities market participant. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are therefore requested to submit their PAN to the DP with whom they maintain their demat accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form should submit their PAN to Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private 
Limited or Company.

9. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately about any change in their Residential address or 
bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form are requested to intimate any change of address or bank mandate immediately to the Company at its Registered Office 
or to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 
– 400083.

10. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail address for receiving all 
communications including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc., from the Company with their Depository Participants or with our 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited.

11. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning accounts of the Company are requested to address their queries to the 
Company at least Seven days prior the date of the meeting, through email on investor.relations@viporg.com. The same will be 
replied accordingly.

12. Members may be aware, that the Equity Shares of the Company have been sub-divided from one equity shares of `10/- each to 5 
equity shares of ̀  2/- each, in terms of Resolution passed by the Members of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of 
the Company held on February 1, 2006. The Members who are still holding their share certificate of `10/- each of the Company 
required to exchange the same with new equity shares of ` 2/- each by sending the same to the Company's Registrar & Transfer 
Agent, Link Intime India Private Limited, since the old Share Certificate of ̀ 10/- each are no longer tradable.

13. In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first shareholder in the order of names as per the 
Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote.

14. The Notice of the 32nd AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2021-22, is available on the website of the Company 
namely www.vipclothing.in, websites of the Stock Exchanges, i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
namely www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited namely 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.

15. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 
dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition and re-lodged 
transfers of securities. Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize shares held in physical 
form at the earliest available opportunity.

16. A brief profile of the Director retiring by rotation and proposed to be re-appointed at this AGM, nature of his expertise in specific 
functional areas, names of companies in which he holds directorship and Membership/Chairmanship of Board Committee(s), 
shareholding and relationship between Directors and Key Managerial Personnel as stipulated under Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations are provided in Annexure to this Notice.

17. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any changes in 
address or any intimation regarding demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat 
account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified.

18. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, provides for Nomination by the Shareholders of the Company in the prescribed forms which 
are available on the website of the Company “www.vipclothing.in” shareholders requested to avail this facility.

II. INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM AND ELECTRONIC VOTING

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the Company is pleased to provide members, the 
facility to exercise their vote at the 32nd AGM by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting services. 
The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system (“remote e-Voting”) will be provided by our RTA i.e, 
Link Intime India Private Limited.

2. Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG format) of the a certified copy of the Board Resolution 
authorising their representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and vote through remote e-Voting at the 
Meeting.

3. Mr. Rakesh Sanghani or on failing of him Mr. Marmik Patel, Practising Company Secretary from M/s. RS & MP Associates (Unique 
Code No. P2017MH061400) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-Voting in a fair and transparent manner.

4. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of e-Voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the meeting, thereafter unblock the 
votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the meeting, a Consolidated Scrutinizer’s 
Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorised by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same.
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5. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company www.vipclothing.in and 
on the website of Link Intime India Private Limited https://instavote.linkintime.co.in. The Company shall simultaneously forward the 
results to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

6. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the AGM through VC / 
OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

7. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date.

8. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@linkintime.co.in. However, if 
he/she is already registered with LIIPL for remote e-voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the 
vote.

B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING THE AGM

1. The remote e-Voting period commence on Tuesday, September 20, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. and ends on Thursday, September 22, 
2022 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form as on 
the (Cut-off date) Friday, September 16, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The e-Voting module shall be disabled by Link 
Intime India Private Limited for voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is casted by the Member, he shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently.

2. The details of the process and manner for voting electronically are mentioned below:

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS:

As per the SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode can register directly with the 
depository or will have the option of accessing various ESP portals directly from their demat accounts.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

1. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL

I. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login"" which is available under 'IDeAS' section, 
this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote” website 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

II. If you are not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select "Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal" or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

III. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal 
computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will 
be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

2. Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL

I. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, can login through their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

II. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period.

III. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/ 
EasiRegistration. 

IV. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat account number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. LINKINTIME. Click on 
LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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3. Individual Shareholders (holding securities in demat mode) login through their depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to “InstaVote” website for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in physical form/ Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:

1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 

2. Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following details: - 

A. User ID: 

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company. Shareholders 
holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding shares in 
CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 

B. PAN: 

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: 

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: 

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your DP/Company. 

*Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above

▶ Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special Character 

(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter)

▶ Click “confirm” (Your password is now generated). 

3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 

4. Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on ‘Submit’. 

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 

2. E-voting page will appear. 

3. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link). 

4. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm 
your vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system of LIIPL at 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They are also required to 
upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorised representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’ login for the 
Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective helpdesk for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password: 

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password or both then the 
shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click ‘forgot password?’ 

Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on “SUBMIT”.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the 
password of his/her choice by providing the information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank 
Account Number (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special 
character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 

User ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with 
the Company

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has forgotten the password: 

Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at 
abovementioned depository/ depository participants website.

Ø It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

Ø For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained in 
this Notice.

Ø During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular 
“Event”.

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1.  Open the internet browser and launch the URL: https://instameet.linkintime.co.in  

▶ Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: - 

A. Demat Account No. or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company 

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/  Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number. 

D.  Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company. 

▶ Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the meeting).

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 22-23058542-43. 
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Place: Mumbai 
Date: August 12, 2022 

By order of the Board of Directors
For VIP Clothing Limited

Sd/-                                                                                                   
Sunil J. Pathare

                   Chairman & Managing Director
  (DIN: 00192182)

Instructions for Shareholders to Speak during the Annual General Meeting:

1. Shareholders/ Members who would like to express their views / ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 
speaker by sending their request mentioning their names, demat account number / folio number, email id, mobile number at 
investor.relations@viporg.com from Friday, September 16, 2022, 10.00 A.M. to Tuesday, September 20, 2022, 5.00 P.M.

2. Those shareholders / members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of 
time for the 32nd AGM.

3. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client. 

4. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

5. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

6. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your 
device.

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial number for 
speaking. 

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who have not exercised 
their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote”.

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received 
during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'. 

3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for voting. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which represents no. of 
votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against'.

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation 
box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” and accordingly 
modify your vote. 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted their 
vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be 
eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the 
meeting. 

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for better 
experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot 
may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection 
to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an 
email to instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.
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Mr. Kapil Pathare

05th September, 1979, 42 Years

B.Com, MBA

Mr. Kapil Jaykumar Pathare is the Promoter  and the Whole time Director of our Company. 
He holds a Bachelor‟s degree in Commerce from University of Mumbai obtained in June, 
1999 and a Masters in Business Administration (Entrepreneurship and Family Business) 
degree from Narsee Monjee Institute of Management Studies obtained in August, 2002. 
He looks after the overall production activities of the Company. Mr. Kapil J. Pathare is 
having vast knowledge on manufacturing process, production and quality control in the 
hosiery industry.

• Bharat Nirman Award for Young Entreprenur, New Delhi.
• Business Award Summit, JW Marriott, Baku, Azerbaijan.
• Leaders Award – Brand of the year 2021.
• National Business Excellence & Achiever’s Award 2021 awarded by Governor Shri 

Bhagat Singh Koshyari.

Younger brother of Mr. Sunil Pathare, Chairman and Managing Director.

NIL

NIL

1,48,15,548 Equity shares

Name of the Director

Date of Birth/Age

Qualification

Brief resume including nature of expertise

Recognition or awards

Relationship with other Directors

Directorship held in other listed companies

M e m b e r s h i p /  C h a i r m a n s h i p  o f  
Committees of other listed companies

No of shares held in the Company as on 
March 31, 2022

PROFILE OF DIRECTOR BEING RE-APPOINTED
Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting (Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the 
SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015) and Secretarial Standard -2.
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To,
THE MEMBERS
VIP CLOTHING LIMITED

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present, the 32nd Annual Report, on the working and the progress of the Company, along 
with audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and Report of the Auditors thereon.

         (₹in Lakhs)

Current  Year Ended Previous Year Ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31,   2021

Revenue from Operations 18,175.31 14,305.23
Other Income 375.13 206.61
Profit before Interest & finance charge, Depreciation & Income Tax 898.71 504.46
Interest & Finance charges (925.84) (1,090.38)
Depreciation (384.82) (393.40)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (Before Exceptional Income) (411.95) (979.32)
Exceptional (Loss)/Income - -
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax after Exceptional (loss)/income (411.95) (979.32)
(Income Tax)
Provision for Income tax Expense for prior periods - -
Deferred Tax (190.63) (874.77)
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (221.32) (104.55)
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations - -
Profits/(Loss) for the year (221.32) (104.55)
Other Comprehensive income (net of tax) 21.79           2.32
Cashflow Hedge through other Comprehensive income (net of tax) (18.45) (52.00)
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of Company (217.98) (154.23)
Profit Brought forward (419.42) (317.21)
Deletion for the year on account of transition – IND AS-116 - -
Profit available for appropriation (618.95) (419.42)
Appropriation 
Dividend and Tax on dividend - -
Closing balance in retain earnings (618.95) (419.42)

Revenue from operations for the financial year 2021-22 stood to ₹ 181.75 Crore as against ₹ 143.05 Crore in the previous financial 
year 2020-21. There was an increase in the revenue by 27% as compared to the previous year. 

The Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA) during the current year stood around 5% as against the 
4% in the previous year.

The Net loss for the financial year 2021-22, stood around ₹ 2.21 Crore as against the Net Loss of ₹ 1.04 Crore in the previous financial 
year 2020-21.

Due to loss in the financial year 2021-22, the Board has not recommended any dividend on Equity Share Capital for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2022.

Due to loss in the current and previous financial year, no amount has been transferred to General Reserve for current and previous 
financial year.

During the year under review there is no change in share capital of the Company.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

2. OPERATIONS

3. DIVIDEND

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

5. SHARE CAPITAL



6. SUBSIDIARY

7. FIXED DEPOSIT

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

9. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

10. NUMBER OF MEETING OF THE BOARD

11. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

12. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

15.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND INTERNAL ADEQUACY

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company.

During the year, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposits under the Companies Act, 2013.

As per Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 
separate section on Corporate Governance practice followed by the Company, together with the certificate from Company's Auditors 
Confirming the compliance on Corporate Governance forms an integral part of this report.

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as on March 31, 2022, as per required under Section 92 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, have been appended as Annexure – A to this Report.

The Board of Directors met 4 (Four) times during the financial year 2021-22. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within 
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the Board Meetings and the attendance of the Directors are 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company believes in conducting its affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting the highest standards of 
professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. In order to achieve the same, the Company has formulated a Whistle 
Blowers Policy to provide a secure environment and to encourage all employees and Directors of the Company, Members, 
customers, vendors and/ or third party intermediaries to report unethical, unlawful or improper practices, acts or activities in the 
Company if any and to prohibit managerial personnel from taking any adverse action against those employees who report such 
practices in good faith. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the Company at www.vipclothing.in.

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board 
Members. The policy is available on the website of the Company www.vipclothing.in.

All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were in the ordinary course of business, on 
arm's length basis and in accordance with the provisions of the Act read with the Rules issued thereunder and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There were no material related party transactions during the year 
under review. Accordingly, no transactions are being reported in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The details about the initiatives taken by the Company on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities during the year are as per 
the annexure attached to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 have been appended as Annexure – 
B to this Report. The policy is available on the website of the Company www.vipclothing.in.

The Company has formed a Risk Management Committee in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. The Committee is responsible for reviewing the risk management 
plan and ensuring its effectiveness.

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the size and complexity of operations. 
These systems are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors' and cover all offices, factories and key 
business areas, significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit 
Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control environment and monitors the implementation of 
audit recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the Company's risk management systems.
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16. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

17. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

19. AUDITORS

20. COST RECORD AND COST AUDIT

21. SECRETARIAL AUDIT

22. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual working for the 
Company through various interventions and practices. It is the continuous endeavour of the Management of the Company to create 
and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The 
Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC).

During the year under review, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment were received by the Committee.

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by them, the Directors make the 
following statement in terms of Section 134(3)© of the Companies Act, 2013 that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and of 
the loss of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2022;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls 
are adequate and operating effectively;

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively.

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals during the year which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company’s future operations.

M/s. MSKA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, [Firm Registration No. 105047W], the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, were appointed by the Shareholders at their meeting held on September 24, 2021 for a period of 5 years i.e. up to 
conclusion of Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting. 

Accordingly, the Auditors have given the audit report for the year ended on March 31, 2022. The said Auditors' Report does not 
contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks.

There has been no notification till date, covering our industry for the purpose of maintenance of Cost Accounting Records and Cost 
Audit for the financial year 2021-22.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Company has appointed Mr. 
Rakesh Sanghani, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS No. 7647) (C.P No.6302) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 is appended as Annexure – C to this Report. There are 
no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the report.

There has been no change in the composition of Board of Directors of the Company during the year under review.

Retirement by rotation

Pursuant to Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Kapil J. Pathare would retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
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Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has the following Key Managerial Personnel:

1. Mr. Sunil J. Pathare - Chairman & Managing Director
2. Mr. Kapil J. Pathare – Whole-time Director
3. Mr. Devendra Vyas - Chief Financial Officer 
4. Mrs. Archana Mungunti - Company Secretary & Compliance officer 

The Board of the Company as on March 31, 2022 consisted of 6 (Six) Directors out of which 4 (Four) are Independent Directors and 2 
(Two) are Executive Directors.

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence mentioned under Regulation 16(b) 
of Chapter IV of SEBI's (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 149(6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI's (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 and SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated January 5, 2017, the Board carried out an annual evaluation 
of performance of its own and it's Committees and the Directors individually. At the meeting of Independent Directors held on 
February 09, 2022 and as per the criteria specified by SEBI all the relevant factors for evaluating the performance of the Committees 
and of the Board was discussed.

The Company has not given any Loans, Guarantees and also not made any Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Pursuant to Section 149 read with Schedule IV, Part III of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of the SEBI's (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company familiarizes its Independent Directors on their roles, 
rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and its products as a 
regular practice.

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to Section 
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure – D to this 
report.

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Sub Rule 2 and 3 of Rule 5 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended 
on   March 31, 2022 is given in a separate Annexure - E to this Report.

None of the Employees of the Company are in receipt of Rupees One Crore and Two Lakhs per annum or Rupees Eight Lakhs and 
Fifty Thousand per month during the year under review.

None of the employees listed in the said Annexure are a relative of any Director of the Company. None of the employees hold (by 
himself or along with his spouse and dependent children) more than two per cent of the Equity Shares of the Company.

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by Regulation 34(2)(f) of Chapter IV of SEBI's (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to your Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2022.

The Credit Rating rationale as on October 28, 2021, CRISIL has affirmed the following rating with respect to the Credit Bank Facilities 
availed by the Company as follows;

24. BOARD INDEPENDENCE

25. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD

26. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

27. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMMES FOR DIRECTORS

28. STATUTORY INFORMATION

29. CREDIT RATING
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Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated  123.4 Crores

Long Term Rating CRISIL BB/Stable (Reaffirmed and outlook revised to ‘Stable’)

Short Term Rating CRISIL A4+ (Reaffirmed)

`



30. LISTING

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

32. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Equity shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and listing 
fees have been paid accordingly.

The Directors of your Company acknowledge with deep sense of appreciation the encouragement, support and co-operation 
received by the Company from its Bankers viz. State Bank of India, IDBI Bank Limited, HDFC Bank Limited and BSE Limited, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Members; Suppliers and Esteemed Customers of the Company.

Statement made in the Annual Report including those stated under the caption “Management Discussion and Analysis” describing 
the Company's plan, projections and expectations may constitute “forward looking statement” within the meaning of applicable laws 
and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those either expressed or implied.
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For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Sunil J. Pathare

             Chairman & Managing Director
                                                                                                           (DIN: 00192182)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022



ANNEXURE - A

MGT – 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY)

As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2022
(Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management & Administration Rules, 2014)

1 CIN L18101MH1991PLC059804

2 Registration Date January 14, 1991

3 Name of the Company VIP Clothing Limited

4 Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by Shares/Indian Non-government Company

5 Address of the Registered Office & Contact Details C-6, Road No.22, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 093, 
Maharashtra, Tel : 022-28257624/27/33, 40209000, 
Email: investor.relations@viporg.com

6 Whether listed company Yes

7 Name, Address & Contact details of the Link Intime India Private Limited
Registrar & Transfer Agent C-101, 247 Park, L B S Marg,

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai – 400 083
Tel  : +91 22 49186000
Fax : +91 22 49186060
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Sr. No. Name and Description of Main Products NIC Code of the Products/Services %  to total turnover of the Company

1 Hosiery Product 14309    100%

There are no Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies. 

i) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING

Website: www.vipclothing.in
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Category of Shareholders

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year  No. of Shares held at the end of the year  % Change
during

the 
year

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

A. Promoters         

1) Indian         

a) Individual / HUF 43791374 - 43791374 53.02 40824038 - 40824038 49.42 (3.59)

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

f) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

i) Body Corporate 30000 - 30000 0.03 80000 - 80000 0.10 0.07

Sub Total (A)(1): 43821374 - 43821374 53.05 40904038 - 40904038 49.52 (3.53)



2)  Foreign         

a) NRIs Individual - - - - - - - - -

b) Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - -

d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -

Total Shareholding of Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 43821374 - 43821374 53.05 40904038 - 40904038 49.52 (3.53)

B. Public Shareholding         

1)  Institutions         

a) Mutual Funds/UTI 875 - 875 - 875 - 875 0.00 -

b)  Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

c) Alternate Investment Funds - - - - - - - - -

d) Foreign Venture Capital 
Investors - - - - - - - - -

e) Foreign Portfolio Investor 222026 - 222026 0.27 300872 - 300872 0.36 0.09

f) Financial Institutions / Banks - - - - - - - - -

g) Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

h) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds - - - - - - - - -

I) Any Other (Specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (B)(1):- 222901 - 222901 0.27 301747 - 301747 0.36 0.09

2) Central Government / State 
Government (s) / President of 
India Central Government /  
State Government (s) - - - - - - - - -

Sub Total (B) (2) - - - - - - - - -

3)  Non-Institutions

a) Individuals

I)  Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to 
Rs. 1 lakhs. 16911578 512619 17424197 21.10 23919000 475435 24394435 29.53 8.44

ii)  Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in excess 
of Rs. 1 lakhs. 5186456 341250 5527706 6.69 10386960 341250 10728210 12.99 6.30

b) NBFCs registered with RBI - - - - - - - - -

c) Employee Trusts - - - - - - - - -

d) Overseas Depositories(holding 

DRs) (balancing figure) - - - - - - - - -

e) Any Other (Specify)

i) Trusts 500 - 500 0.00 500 - 500 - -

ii) Hindu Undivided Family 1552571 - 1552571 1.88 1796443 - 1796443 2.18 0.30

iii) Non Resident Indians 
(Non Repat) 200741 - 200741 0.24 342640 - 342640 0.41 0.17

iv) Non Resident Indians (Repat) 275546 1750 277296 0.34 409281 1750 411031 0.50 0.16

v) Clearing Member 6340656 - 6340656 7.68 148276 - 148276 0.18 (7.50)

vi) Bodies Corporate 6409083 82687 6491770 7.86 2704067 82687 2786754 3.37 (4.49)

vii) IEPF 736807 - 736807 0.89 782445 - 782445 0.94 0.05

Sub Total (B)(3) 37613938 938306 38552244 46.71 40489612 901122 41390734 50.11 3.40

Total Public Shareholding(B)=
(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(3) 37836839 938306 38775145 46.95 40791359 901122 41692481 50.48 3.53

Total (A)+(B) 81658213 938306 82596519 100.00 81695397 901122 82596519 100 -

C) Non Promoter - Non Public

1) Custodian/DR Holder - - - - - - - - -

2) Employee Benefit Trust 
(under SEBI (Share based 
Employee Benefit) Regulations, 
2014)

Grand Total (A+B+C) 81658213 938306 82596519 100.00 81695397 901122 82596519 100
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Category of Shareholders

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
during

the 
year

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 



ii)   Shareholding of Promoters (including Promoter Group)

*1,15,500 Equity Shares of the Company held by Late Shri Jaykumar Pathare were transmitted to Mrs. Lalita Jaykumar Pathare.

iii) Changes in promoters' shareholding (including Promoter Group)

16

No of Shares % of total 

Shares of the 

Company

% of Shares 

Pledged/   

encumbered to 

total shares

No. of shares % of total 

Shares of the 

Company

% of Shares 

Pledged/   

encumbered to 

total shares

% change
during the 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the yearSr 

No.

Shareholders Name

 year

1 Sunil Jaykumar Pathare 1,67,42,008 20.27 - 1,67,42,008 20.27 - -

2 Kapil Jaykumar Pathare 1,48,15,548 17.94 - 1,48,15,548 17.94 - -

3 Jaykumar Khanderao Pathare* 1,15,500 0.14 - - - - (0.14)

4 Lalita Jaykumar Pathare 1,03,07,937 12.48 - 7338652 8.88 - (3.60)

5 Heena Sunil Pathare 8,34,443 1.01 - 8,34,443 1.01 - -

6 Ashwini Kapil Pathare 6,87,138 0.83 - 6,87,138 0.83 - -

 7 Kanishk Sunil Pathare 288800 0.35 - 406249 0.49 - 0.14

8 Maxwell Capital Management 
Private Limited 30,000 0.03 - 80000 0.10 - -

Total 4,38,21,374 53.05 - 40904038 49.52 - 0.07
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1 SUNIL JAYKUMAR PATHARE         

At the beginning of the year 16742008 20.27 16742008 20.27

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 16742008 20.27

2 KAPIL JAYKUMAR PATHARE      

At the beginning of the year 14815548 17.94 14815548 17.94

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 14815548 17.94

3 LALITA JAYKUMAR PATHARE      

At the beginning of the year 10307937 12.48 10307937 12.48

22.02.2022  (1000000) (1.21) 9307937 11.27

23.02.2022 (583199) (0.71) 8724738 10.56

25.02.2022 (205806) (0.25) 8518932 10.31

02.03.2022 (1045780) (1.27) 7473152 9.05

03.03.2022 (250000) (0.30) 7223152 8.75

04.03.2022 (by way of Transmission) 115500 0.14 7338652 8.88

At the end of the year 7338652 8.88

4 HEENA SUNIL PATHARE        

At the beginning of the year 834443 1.01 834443 1.01

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 834443 1.01

Name & Type of Transaction

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year  

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  

Sr 
No.



For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Name & Type of Transaction No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Sr 
No.

1 MUKESH GOBINDRAM KIMTANI

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

25.02.2022 1606231 1.94 1606231 1.94

04.03.2022 1000000 1.21 2606231 3.16

11.03.2022 250000 0.30 2856231 3.46

At the end of the year 2856231 3.46

2 CHETAN KANTILAL MEHTA

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

11.02.2022 200 0.00 200 0.00

18.02.2022 254879 0.31 255079 0.31

25.02.2022 16000 0.02 271079 0.33

04.02.2022 37365 0.05 308444 0.37

iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDR and ADRs) :

5 ASHWINI KAPIL PATHARE  

At the beginning of the year 687138 0.83 687138 0.83

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 687138 0.83

6 KANISHK SUNIL PATHARE

At the beginning of the year 288800 0.35 288800 0.35

08.09.2021 27000 0.03 315800 0.38

08.11.2021 43000 0.05 358800 0.43

09.11.2021 10000 0.01 368800 0.45

10.11.2021 12449 0.01 381249 0.46

11.11.2021 15000 0.02 396249 0.48

17.11.2021 10000 0.01 406249 0.49

At the end of the year 406249 0.49

7 JAYKUMAR KHANDERAO PATHARE 115500 0.14 0 0

At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Trasmission (dt.21.02.2022) (115500) (0.14) 0.00 0.00

At the end of the year 0 0.00

8 MAXWELL CAPITAL MANAGEMENT PRIVATE 
LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 50000 0.06 50000 0.06

06.09.2021 30000 0.04 80000 0.10

At the end of the year 80000 0.10

Name & Type of Transaction

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year  

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  

Sr 
No.
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11.03.2022 89270 0.11 397714 0.48

18.03.2022 102139 0.12 499853 0.61

25.03.2022 221490 0.27 721343 0.87

31.03.2022 99657 0.12 821000 0.99

At the end of the year 0 0 821000 0.99

3 INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
AUTHORITY MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

At the beginning of the year 736807 0.89 0 0

10.12.2021 45638 0.06 782445 0.95

At the end of the year 0 0 782445 0.95

4 JOHAR H ZOJWALLA

At the beginning of the year 669372 0.81 0 0

At the end of the year 0 0 669372 0.81

5 RVB ENTERPRISES LLP   

At the beginning of the year 500000 0.61 0 0

At the end of the year 0 0 500000 0.61

6 TASNEEM JOHAR ZOJWALLA

At the beginning of the year 384975 0.47

At the end of the year 384975 0.47

7 SURENDRA N SANGHAVI  

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

07.01.2022 136107 0.16 136107 0.16

14.01.2022 (69000) (0.08) 67107 (0.08

18.02.2022 (22807) (0.03) 44300 0.05

11.03.2022 47140 0.06 91440 0.11

18.03.2022 124060 0.15 215500 0.26

25.03.2022 105627 0.13 321127 0.39

31.03.2022 7 0.00 321134 0.39

At the end of the year 321134 0.39
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iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDR and ADRs) :

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Name & Type of Transaction No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Sr 
No.



8 KUNAL GOVIND KATARIA

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

18.02.2022 238000 0.29 238000 0.29

25.02.2022 47000 0.06 285000 0.35

04.03.202 25000 0.03 310000 0.38

At the end of the year 0 0 310000 0.38

9 PREMIER INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED   

At the beginning of the year 222026 0.27 0 0

At the end of the year 0 0 222026 0.27

10 VT CAPITAL MARKET PRIVATE LIMITED           

At the beginning of the year 3853765 4.67

28.05.2021 (376808) (0.46) 3476957 4.21

04.06.2021 (394381) (0.48) 3082576 3.73

11.06.2021 (576237) (0.70) 2506339 3.03

18.06.2021 (71542) (0.09) 2434797 2.95

25.06.2021 (85990) (0.10) 2348807 2.84

30.06.2021 (37805) (0.05) 2311002 2.80

02.07.2021 (11002) (0.01) 2300000 2.78

09.07.2021 (89077) (0.11) 2210923 2.68

16.07.2021 (910923) (1.10) 1300000 1.57

23.07.2021 (1264500) (1.53) 35500 0.04

05.11.2021 (20000) (0.02) 15500 0.02

At the end of the year 0 0 15500 0.02
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iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDR and ADRs) :

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Name & Type of Transaction No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Sr 
No.
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr 
No.

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year  

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Name & Type of Transaction

Note:

1) There are no shares held by the Key Managerial Personnel except Mr. Sunil J. Pathare and Mr. Kapil J. Pathare.

2) Paid up No. of Equity Share Capital of the Company (Face Value Rs.2.00) at the end of the year is 8,25,96,519 Equity Shares

1 Sunil J. Pathare     

 At the beginning of the year 16742008 20.27 16742008 20.27

 Bought during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Sold during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 at the end of the year 16742008 20.27

2 Kapil J. Pathare     

 At the beginning of the year 14815548 17.94 14815548 17.94

 Bought during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Sold during the year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 at the end of the year 14815548 17.94

Secured Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

(` in Lakhs)

V. Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Particulars

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year     

i) Principal Amount 8,892.70 - - 8,892.70

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 8,892.70 - - 8,892.70

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

*Addition 1,086.36 230.00 - 1,316.36

*Reduction 180.00 - 180.00

Net Change 1,086.36 50.00 - 1,136.36

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 9,934.03 50.00 - 9,984.03

ii) Interest due but not paid 45.03 - - 45.03

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 9,979.06 50.00 - 10,029.06
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VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager;

Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount

CMD WTD

Sunil J. Pathare Kapil J. Pathare

1 Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 

of the Income-tax Act,1961

71.10 58.72

b) Value of perquisites u/s. 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Swear Equity

4 Commission - -

- as % of profit

- others, specify…

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act

Name of MD/WTD/ManagerSr 

No

-

0.26

-

-

-

-

-

71.36

(10% of the net profit of the Company 
calculated as per Section 198 of the 

Companies Act, 2013)

-

0.26

-

-

-

-

-

58.98

(` in Lakhs)

129.82

-

-

0.52

-

-

-

-

-

130.34

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

B. Remuneration to other Directors :

Total Amount

Gopal Sehjpal Chetan Sheth Robin Banerjee

Independent Directors

*  Fees for attending board 
committee meeting

1.00 1.00 1.00 4.00

*  Commission

*  Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Meher Castelino

*  Fees for attending board 
committee meeting

*  Commission

*  Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration
(A + B)

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Name of DirectorSr 
No

Particulars of Remuneration

1. 

2.  

(` in Lakhs)

-

1.00 1.00 1.00 4.00

-

4.001.00 1.00 1.00

(11% of the net profit of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013)

Ceiling as per the Act (1% of the net profit of the Company calculated as per Section 198 of the Companies
Act, 2013)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- - -

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.00

1.00

1.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

134.34
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Total 

Chief Finance Officer

Devendra Vyas

1 Gross Salary

a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 31.07  38.70

b) Value of perquisites u/s. 17(2) Income-tax Act,1961

c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option

3 Swear Equity

4 Commission

5 Others, please specify

Total (A)

Key Managerial PersonnelSr 
No

Particulars of Remuneration

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

For and on behalf of the Board

      Sunil J. Pathare
Place: Mumbai  Chairman & Managing Director
Date : May 30, 2022            (DIN 00192182)

-

-

-

-

46.22

-

-

-

-

53.93

(` in Lakhs)

15.15 15.23

- -

Income-tax Act,1961

VII) Penalties/punishment/compounding of offences :

There were no penalties/punishment/compounding of offences for breach of any section of the Companies Act against the 
Company or its directors or other officer in default, if any, during the year.

Amount
Company Secretary

Archana Mungunti

7.63

-

-

-

-

7.71

0.08

-

Sd/-
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ANNEXURE - B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects to be undertaken:

The main objective of CSR policy is to lay down guidelines to make CSR a key business process for sustainable development of the 
Society. It aims at supplementing the role of the Government in enhancing welfare measures of the society based on the immediate 
and long term social & environmental consequences of their activities. The CSR Policy is available on the website of the Company at 
www.vipclothing.in. Due to losses in Previous years the Company had not undertaken any activities under CSR.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Board has authority to reconstitute this Committee from time to time. The Committee shall consist of minimum three 
members with at least one Independent Director. The present constitution of the CSR Committee is as follows:

Mr. Sunil Pathare - Chairman of the Committee
Mr. Kapil Pathare - Member of the Committee
Mr. Gopal Sehjpal - Member of the Committee
Mr. Chetan Sheth - Member of the Committee
Mrs. Meher Castelino - Member of the Committee

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years (2019-2021) :        Not Applicable.

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item no.3) (2019-2021) :         Nil

5. Details of CSR amount spent during the financial year (2021-22) :       Nil

6. The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with 
CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

For VIP Clothing Limited For and on behalf of the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
VIP Clothing Limited

Sunil J. Pathare Sunil J. Pathare
Chairman & Managing Director Chairman of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
(DIN : 00192182)  

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2022

Annual Report 2021-22
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ANNEXURE - C

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
VIP CLOTHING LIMITED

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices 
by VIP CLOTHING LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and made available to us electronically in view of prevailing circumstances due to outbreak of pandemic COVID-19 and also 
the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

5) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

c) The SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; - Not 
applicable to the Company for the financial year under review

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; - Not applicable to the 
Company for the financial year under review

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies Act and dealing with client;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - Not applicable to the Company 
for the financial year under review and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; - Not applicable to the Company for 
the financial year under review

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant documents 
and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the 
Company, as informed to me i.e.:

a) The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

b) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

c) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

d) The Factories Act, 1948

e) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

Annual Report 2021-22
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f) Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923

g) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

h) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981

i) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

j) Legal Metrology Act, 2009

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standard – 1 and Secretarial Standard – 2 as issued by 
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the year under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above except the following:

I). As per Regulation 17(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015, there should not be gap of more than 120 days between two consecutive Board Meetings and two consecutive 
Audit Committee Meetings. However, there was gap of more than 120 days between two consecutive Board Meetings and two 
consecutive Audit Committee Meetings respectively during the Quarter-I of FY 2021-22.

ii). The Corporate Governance Report submitted by the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 had a typo-error mistake 
and the reporting on the category of the Director - Mrs. Meher Castelino was erroneously selected & reported as Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director.

iii). As per Secretarial Standard-1 as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the draft minutes for the Board Meeting 
dated: February 09, 2022 was circulated to the Board Members beyond 15 (Fifteen) days on February 24, 2022.

iv). The proceeding of the meetings and the minutes of the Board meetings and the Committee meetings held via Video Conference / 
Audio & Video Mode are not in adherence to the requirements of the Rule 3 of the Companies (Meetings of Board & its Powers) 
Rules, 2014.

v). The Company has not filed eForm CFSS for reporting of eForms filed by the Company under the Company Fresh Start Scheme 
2020.

I further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and 
Independent Directors.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance and in case of shorter notice, the Company has complied with the proviso of Section 173(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and there were no instances where dissenting members’ views were required to be captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:

i). Public/Preferential issue of shares / debentures / sweat equity.

ii). Redemption / Buy-back of securities

iii). Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013

iv). Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

v). Foreign technical collaborations
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Rakesh Sanghani
Practising Company Secretary

         FCS No. 7647
       C P No.: 6302

UDIN:F007647D000454467

This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure – I’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE – I

To,
The Members,
VIP CLOTHING LIMITED
(Formerly known as Maxwell Industries Limited)

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial records and for devising proper systems 
to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations.

2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to 
secretarial compliances. I believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and 
appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion.

3. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 
contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial 
records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

4. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company and for the same 
I have relied on the report of Statutory Auditors.

5. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

6. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Rakesh Sanghani
Practising Company Secretary

         FCS No. 7647
       C P No.: 6302

UDIN:F007647D000454467
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ANNEXURE - D

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

For and on behalf of the Board

         Sd/-     
Sunil J. Pathare

   Chairman & Managing Director
(DIN: 00192182)

Disclosure of Particulars with respect to conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo required under section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

The Company continued to emphasize on the conservation and optimal utilisation of energy at all the manufacturing unit of the 
Company. Maintenance of all plant, machinery and equipment are continuously serviced, updated, overhauled and maintained them 
in good condition. This has impact on lesser energy consumption.

The Company continued its efforts towards effective utilisation of energy for reduction in power consumption. The Company has the 
wind mill in Edyaarpalayam (Tamil Nadu) and availing the benefit on energy consumption at its Thingalur (Tamil Nadu) Stitching unit.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production in respect of Industries specified in scheme thereto:

Efforts are made in technology absorption to the extent applicable.

I. Research & Development and Quality Control

1. Specific area in which R & D and Quality Control were carried out to achieve the Company's vision by way of:

1.1 Improving operational efficiency:

• The Company has continued to maintain the state of art machinery at its both stitching units for its fabric laying and 
automatic fabric cutting. This will have reduction in wastage and optimise the consumption of fabric.

• Continuous monitoring to avoid wastage of fabric and other accessories and optimize the manufacturing operations 
at the stitching floor on the basis of time and motion study.

• Modification of specification in the field of Raw Material and Packing Material to further improve the quality of our end 
product.

• Due to Quality Control inspection at all manufacturing unit, resulted in improvised quality of end product.

• Improved the supply chain.

1.2 New product and packing development and way forward:

• Development of new range of product in across all the brands of the Company.

• Improvised packing of VIP and Frenchie product.

II.  Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:

1. Efforts in brief, made towards Technology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation:

Imparting training to personnel in various manufacturing techniques by Indian experts and suppliers of Plant and 
Machinery.

2. Benefit derived as a result of the above efforts:

• Increase in productivity

• Power saving

• Manpower cost reduction

• Raw material cost reduction

• Production wastage reduction

The Company has earned ₹ 1420.86 lakhs (Previous year ₹ 1155.76 lakhs) from exports during the year. The total amount of outgo on 
account of foreign exchange utilised by the Company amounted to ₹ 49.72 lakhs (Previous year ₹ 93.60 lakhs).

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGOING

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022 

Units Consumed (In Lakhs) 5.72
Units Consumed per kg. of Production 0.81

Year ended
31 March, 2022

Year ended
31 March, 2021

6.55
0.75
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Disclosures pursuant to Rule (5)1 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 
Financial Year 2021-22:

The ratio of the remuneration between:-

Name of Director Ratio of remuneration of each Director/ to median remuneration of employees

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare 23.09

Mr. Kapil J. Pathare 19.09

Mr. Robin Banerjee 0.32

Mr. Chetan Sheth 0.32

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal 0.32

Mrs. Meher Castelino 0.32

(Remuneration includes sitting fees paid to Independent Directors)

2. The percentage increase/decrease in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Directors : Mr. Sunil Pathare : 15 % and Mr. Kapil Pathare : 15 %, Chief Financial Officer: 26.35 %.

3. The percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year:

FY 2020-21: (0.39)%

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:

345 Employees + 690 Workers (they are covered under Payment of Wages Act) – As on March 31, 2022.

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentage increase:

FY: April 2021 - March 2022

M6 & above (Managerial Level) total rise in CTC: 5.51 % 

E1 & Below total rise in CTC:  3.83 %

6. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but received 
remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year.

NIL

7. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees, adopted by the Company. 

    

ANNEXURE - E

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

            Sd/-
                                     Sunil J. Pathare

               Chairman & Managing Director
               (DIN: 00192182)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,
The Members,
VIP Clothing Limited
C-6, Road No.22, MIDC
Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of VIP Clothing Limited, 
having CIN: L18101MH1991PLC059804 and having registered office at C-6, Road No.22, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub-Clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verification (including Directors identification Number (DIN) status at 
the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers to me physically and 
electronically, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 
March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority:

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Rakesh Sanghani
Practising Company Secretary
FCS: 7647 CP No.: 6302
UDIN: F007647D000633525

Date: July 16, 2022
Place: Mumbai

ANNEXURE - F

1. Mr. Sunil Jaykumar Pathare Chairman & Managing Director 00192182

2. Mr. Kapil Jaykumar Pathare Whole time Director 01089517

3. Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Independent Director 00175975

4. Mr. Chetan Sheth Independent Director 00202723

5. Mr. Robin Banerjee Independent Director 00008893

6. Mrs. Meher Castelino Independent Director 07121874

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designation DIN

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 



The Board of Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) as amended for the year ended March 31, 
2022.

The Company is committed to corporate transparency, accountability, responsibility, fairness and lays emphasis on business ethics 
in all its dealings. The Company believes in meeting its obligations to all its stakeholders, including amongst others, customers, 
employees and the community in which the Company operates.

Corporate Governance is a process that aims to meet Stakeholder's aspirations and social expectations. It's not a discipline imposed 
by a regulator, rather a culture that guides the Board, Management and Employees to function towards best interest of Stakeholders.

a. Governance Structure:

The Board has been constituted, in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rule, 2014, and Regulation 34(3) of Listing Regulations. The Board is entrusted with an ultimate 
responsibility of the Management, Directions and Performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the 
Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view to the Company's management while 
discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.

The Board has constituted the following Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and Risk Management Committee. 
Each of the said Committee has been mandated to operate within a given framework.

b. Change in Board of Directors:

During the year under review there was no change in the Board of Directors of the Company.

c. Composition of Board:

As on 31st March 2022, the Board of Directors comprises of 6 (Six) Directors, out of which 2 (Two) are Promoter/Executive 
Directors and 4 (Four) are Non-Executive/Independent Directors including a Woman Director. The Non-executive Directors are 
eminent professionals, having considerable professional experience in their respective fields.

d. Board Meetings:

Four meetings of Board of Directors were held during the year ended 31st March, 2022. These were held on 30.06.2021, 
10.08.2021, 01.11.2021 and 09.02.2022. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

e. The details of composition of the Board, number of other Directorship, Chairmanship / Membership of Committee of 
each Director in other Companies, attendance of directors at the board meeting and Previous Annual General Meeting 
are as follows;

1. THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

31
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VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Name of Directors Category of No. of Board No. of Attendance
and DIN Director other Indian Listed  Committees Board at the last  

 Companies (excluding VIP) Meetings AGM held on
(excluding VIP) attended 24.09.2021

  during the 
  As As FY 
 Member Chairman

 
Mr. Sunil J. Pathare Promoter / - - - 4 Yes -
DIN : 00192182 Executive Director /
 Chairman & Managing 

Director

Mr. Kapil J. Pathare Promoter / - - - 4 Yes -
DIN : 01089517 Executive Director /

Whole-time Director  

Directorships in Directorship
 in other
 listed

entities
 (Category of

   Directorship)

2021-2022
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VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Caprihance India 
Limited 
(Managing 
Director)
Rossari Biotech 
Limited 
(Independent 
Director)

Rossari Biotech 
Limited 
(Independent 
Director)

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Independent Director 1 1 3 4 Yes Lovable Lingerie  
DIN :00175975 Limited

(Independent
 Director)

Mr. Chetan Sheth Independent Director - - - 4 Yes -
DIN : 00202723

Mr. Robin Banerjee Independent Director 2 2 1 4 Yes
DIN : 00008893

Mrs. Meher Castelino Independent Director 1 2 - 4 No
DIN : 07121874

Name of Directors Category of No. of Board No. of Attendance
and DIN Director other Indian Listed  Committees Board at the last  

 Companies (excluding VIP) Meetings AGM held on
(excluding VIP) attended 24.09.2021

  during the 
  As As FY 
 Member Chairman

Directorships in Directorship
 in other
 listed

entities
 (Category of

   Directorship)

2021-2022

f. Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare is an elder brother of Mr. Kapil J. Pathare. Except for this there is no inter-se relationship among the 
Directors.

g. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors:

None of the Non-Executive/Independent Directors hold any shares in the Company.

h. Familiarisation programmes for Directors:

The details of familiarization program held for the Independent Directors are available on the website of the Company at 
www.vipclothing.in.

i. The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the 
Company which are currently available with the Board:

Global Understanding of global business dynamics, across various geographical markets, industry verticals and
Business regulatory jurisdictions.

Strategy and Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in guiding and leading management
Planning teams to make decisions in uncertain environments.

Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best interests of all stakeholders, maintaining 
board and management accountability, building long-term effective stakeholder engagements and driving 
corporate ethics and values.

Technical Skills and specialist knowledge to assist the ongoing aspects of the Board's role.

Industry Experience and knowledge of the industry in which the organization operates in.



Name of Members Designation Status  No. of meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Chairman Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Chetan Sheth Member Independent Director 4 4
 Mr. Robin Banerjee Member Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare Member Executive Director 4 4
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Core Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board:

Core skills / competencies /
expertise

Name of Directors

Mr. Sunil J 
Pathare

Mr. Kapil J 
Pathare

Mr. Gopal 
Sehjpal

Mr. Chetan 
Sheth

Mr. Robin 
Banerjee

Mrs. Meher 
Castelino

Leadership / Operational

experience √ √ √ √ √ √

Strategic Planning √ √ √ √ √ √

Sector / Industry Knowledge √ √ √ √ √ √

& Experience, Research & 

Development and Innovation

Technology √ √ √ √ √ √

Financial, Regulatory / Legal √ √ √ √ √ √

& Risk Management

Corporate Governance √ √ √ √ √ √

j. Declaration of Independence given by Independent Directors:

All the Independent Directors of the Company have declared that, they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and Section 149 of the Act and having given necessary confirmations received 
from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors confirms the same.

a) Terms of  Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the terms of reference provided under section 177(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 18(3) of the Listing Regulations.

b) Composition of Audit Committee and Number of meeting attended:

The Composition of Audit Committee is in compliance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. During the financial year Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times on 30.06.2021, 
10.08.2021, 01.11.2021 and 09.02.2022.

The Composition of Audit Committee and the number of meetings attended were as under:

Mrs. Archana Mungunti is Company Secretary to the Committee.

a) Terms of   Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are aligned with the terms of reference provided under 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 19(4) of the Listing Regulations.

b) Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and number of meetings attended:

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. During the financial year Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee met 2 (Two) times on 30.06.2021 and 09.02.2022. 

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:



The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the number of meetings attended were as under:

Mrs. Archana Mungunti is Company Secretary to the Committee. 

c) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Director

Performance evaluation of all directors (including Independent Directors) had been undertaken on the basis of guidance note 
issued by SEBI.

a) Criteria of making payment to non-executive director:

The Non-Executive/Independent Directors were paid the sittings fees for attending the Meeting of Board and Committee. The 
company has not granted any stock options to its non-executive / independent directors.

b) Remuneration of Director:

a) Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are aligned with the terms of reference provided under 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 20(4) of the Listing Regulations.

b) Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and number of meetings attended:

The composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in compliance with the requirements of Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations. During the financial year Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee met 4 (Four) times on 30.06.2021, 10.08.2021, 01.11.2021 and 09.02.2022.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

     (` in Lakhs)

Name of Director Relationship with Sitting Salary / Commission Total
other Director/s Fees Perquisites

Relationship
with the  company

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare  Elder brother of   Promoter - 84.73 - 84.73
 Mr. Kapil J. Pathare

Mr. Kapil J. Pathare  Younger brother of  Promoter - 70.92 - 70.92
Mr. Sunil J. Pathare

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal None Independent Director 1.00 - - 1.00

Mr. Chetan Sheth None Independent Director 1.00 - - 1.00

Mr. Robin Banerjee None Independent Director 1.00 - - 1.00

Mrs. Meher Castelino None Independent Director 1.00 - - 1.00

Name of Members Designation Status  No. of  meetings 

Held Attended

Mr. Chetan Sheth Chairman Independent Director 2 1

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Member Independent Director 2 2
 Mrs. Meher Castelino Member Independent Director 2 2

 Mr. Robin Banerjee Member Independent Director 2 2
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Name of Members Designation Status  No. of meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare Chairman Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Kapil J. Pathare Member Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Chetan Sheth Member Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Member Independent Director 1 1

Mrs. Meher Castelino Member Independent Director 1 1

Particulars Complaints Received Complaints Redressed Pending

Non-Receipt of Share Certificate(s) - Transfer 0 0 0

Non- Receipt of Dividend /Interest /Redemption 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0
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The Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee and the number of meetings attended were as under:

Mrs. Archana Mungunti is Company Secretary to the Committee.

c) Number of shareholders' complaints received so far:

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, No complaints were received from shareholders. The statement is as 
follows:

a) Terms of  Reference:

The terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are aligned with the terms of reference provided under 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and number of meetings attended:

The Composition of the Committee is in compliance with the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee met (1) once during the last financial year on 09.02.2022. The details are as follows:

Mrs. Archana Mungunti, Company Secretary to the Committee.

a) The Role of  Risk Management Committee is as follows:

i) Implementation of Risk Management System and Framework;
ii) Reviewing the Company's financial and risk management policies;
iii) Assessing risk and minimizing the procedure;
iv) Framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management plan of the Company.

b) Composition of Risk Management Committee and number of meetings attended:

The composition of Risk Management Committee is in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 21 of the Listing 
Regulations.

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

8. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

Name of Members Designation Status  No. of meetings

Held Attended
  

Mrs. Meher Castelino Chairperson Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Member Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Chetan Sheth Member Independent Director 4 3
 Mr. Robin Banerjee Member Independent Director 4 3

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare Member Executive Director 4 4
 Mr. Kapil J. Pathare Member Executive Director 4 4



Financial AGM Venue Date Time Special Resolution if passed
Year

2020-21 st 31  AGM September 24, 11.30 a.m.
2021

th2018-19 29  AGM Goldfinch Hotel, September 26, 11.00 a.m.
Plot No.34/21, 2019

Central Road, MIDC,
Andheri (East), 

Mumbai – 400 093

NIL

1.Continuation of Directorship of Mrs. Meher  
Castelino.

2.Re-appointment of Mrs. Meher Castelino as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a second 
term.

th2019-20 30  AGM Through Video 
Conferencing / Other 
Audio Visual Means

September 24, 
2020

Through Video 
Conferencing / Other 
Audio Visual Means

11.30 a.m. NIL
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The Risk Management Committee met (1) once during the last financial year on 09.02.2022. The details are as follows:

Mrs. Archana Mungunti is Company Secretary to the Committee.

Pursuant to the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirement of Regulation 25 of the 
Listing Regulation, separate meeting of the Independent Director of the Company was held on February 09, 2022. The attendance 
details as under:

The Company has framed an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to redress the complaints received regarding sexual 
harassment. During the year under review, no complaints were received by the Committee.

i) General Meeting :

a) Annual General Meeting :

Details of last three Annual General Meetings as follows:

9. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

10. INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE PURSUANT TO THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

11. GENERAL BODY MEETING:

Name of Members Designation Status  No. of  meetings 

Held Attended

Mr. Robin Banerjee Chairman Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Member Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Chetan Sheth Member Independent Director 1 1

Mrs. Meher Castelino Member Independent Director 1 1

Name of Members Designation Status  No. of meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Sunil J. Pathare Chairman Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Kapil J. Pathare Member Executive Director 1 1

Mr. Chetan Sheth Member Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Gopal Sehjpal Member Independent Director 1 1

Mrs. Meher Castelino Member Independent Director 1 1
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b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

No extraordinary General Meeting was held during the financial year 2019-20.

ii) Postal Ballot:

No special resolution was required to be passed through postal ballot last year.

i) The Company's transaction with related parties, as per requirement of Indian Accounting Standard - 24, are disclosed in notes 
forming part of the Financial statements in this Annual Report. All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations during the financial year 2021-22 were undertaken in compliance 
with the aforesaid regulatory provisions which is available on the website of the Company at www.vipclothing.in.

ii) There were no materially significant transactions with related parties during the financial year which were in conflict with the interest 
of the Company.

iii) The Company is having the policy on materiality in relation to group companies which is available on the website of the Company at 
www.vipclothing.in.

iv) The Company had not entered into any other transactions of material nature with its Promoters, Directors or the Management, their 
relatives etc., which may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

v) Secretarial Audit was carried out by a qualified Practicing Company Secretary to reconcile the total admitted capital with National 
Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depositories Services Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. 
The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the total issued / paid up capital is an agreement with the total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

vi) None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified as per provision of Section 164(2) of sub-clause (a) or (b) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

vii) The Company has not accepted any public deposits and no amount on account of public deposit was outstanding as on March 31, 
2022.

viii) There has been no non-compliance by the Company on any matter. Hence, the question of penalties or strictures being imposed by 
SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any other statutory authority does not arise.

ix) Listing fees for the financial year 2022-23 have been paid to the Stock Exchanges on which the shares of the Company are listed.

x) The disclosures of the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of the SEBI 
Regulations, and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 shall be made in the section on Corporate Governance of 
the annual report.

xi) The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. As per Regulation 46 of SEBI Listing 
Regulation, the Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the Company (www.vipclothing.in). The Audit Committee 
shall oversee the Vigil Mechanism. No director or employees of the Company has been denied access to audit committee.

xii) The Company has complied with all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

xiii) The Internal Auditors directly report to the Audit Committee.

xiv) The Audit Report contains unmodified audit opinion.

xv) Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditors of the Company are given in in notes forming part of the Financial statements in this 
Annual Report.

xvi) There were no shares lying in unclaimed suspense account under Regulation 39 and Schedule VI of Listing Regulations as on 
March 31, 2022.

xvii) The Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct applicable to 
them during the year ended March 31, 2022. The Annual Report of the Company contains a certificate by the Chairman and 
Managing Director, on the compliance declaration received from all the members of the board.

xviii)COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY / NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

a) The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.

12. OTHER DISCLOSURE:
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b) The Company has also adopted the non-mandatory requirements as specified in the Listing Regulations regarding unmodified 
financial statements.

c) Policies adopted by the company are available on the website: www.vipclothing.in

The Company communicates with its Shareholders through its Annual Report, General Meetings and disclosure through web site. 
Information and latest updates and announcement regarding the Company can be accessed at Company's website 
www.vipclothing.in

a) Quarterly Results: The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are published in leading newspapers 
in India which includes business standard, English and Hindi edition and Sakal for Marathi edition. These results are submitted 
to the stock exchanges within the stipulated time. The quarterly results for the quarters of the financial year 2021-22 was 
published in the below mentioned news papers on the following dates:

b) Website: The Company's website www.vipclothing.in contains a separate section on 'Investor Relation' where shareholders 
information is available. 

c) Presentations to institutional investors and analysts: Details of presentation (if any) made to institutional investors or to the 
analysts are made available on the website of the Company at www.vipclothing.in

d) SEBI Complaint Redress System (SCORES): SCORES is a system implemented by SEBI which enables investors to lodge 
their complaints electronically on the SEBI Website. All complaints received if any through SECORES are resolved in a timely 
manner by the Company.

e) NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (BSE 
Listing Centre): NEAPS and BSE Listing Centre are web based application systems for enabling corporate to undertake 
electronic filing of various periodic compliance related filings like shareholding pattern, results, etc;.

f) Compliance under discretionary requirements under the Listing Regulations:

i) Shareholders Rights: The quarterly financial results are uploaded on the website for the members of the Company at 
www.vipclothing.in.

ii) Modified opinion(s) in audit report: Companies financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion.

iii) Reporting of internal auditor: Internal Auditors of the Company directly report to the Audit Committee on functional matters.

g) Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend and Shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ('IEPF')

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time (“Rules”), the Company is 
mandatorily required to transfer all such shares respect of which dividend(s) has not been en-cashed or claimed by the 
shareholder(s) for last 7 (Seven) consecutive years or more to the Demat Account of IEPF Authority set up by the Central 
Government.  A list of such shareholders is displayed on the website of the Company www.vipclothing.in. The Company has 
also sent individual communication through its RTA to the concerned shareholders. 

In view of this, Members are requested to claim their unclaimed dividend from the Company which was declared in FY 2014-15 
immediately but not later than September 24, 2022 failing which the above shares will get transferred to Demat Account of 
IEPF Authority.

Unclaimed dividend and shares which are transferred to IEPF authority earlier can be claimed by making an application to the 
IEPF Authority in Form No. IEPF - 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. 

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Quarterly Results Newspaper and publishing dates

Business Standard 
(English+ Hindi edition)

Sakal 
(Regional Language)

June 30, 2021 11.08.2021 11.08.2021

September 30, 2021 02.11.2021 02.11.2021

December 31, 2021 10.02.2022 10.02.2022

March 31, 2022 31.05.2022      31.05.2022
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14 GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held on Friday, the 23rd day of September, 2022 at 11.30 a.m. through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

A) Financial Calendar : April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023
Quarterly Results : Results for quarter ended June 30, 2022- Second week of August, 2022

Results for quarter ended September 30, 2022-Second week of November, 2022 
Results for quarter ended December 31, 2022-Second week of February, 2023 
Audited Results for year ended March 31, 2023 - May, 2023

Annual Results : May, 2023

C)   Book Closure : 16/09/2022 to 23/09/2022 (Both days inclusive)

D) Dividend Payment : -

E) Registered office of 
Company : C-6, Road No. 22, MIDC, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 093.

F) Registrar & Transfer Agent : Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 247 Park, 
L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083

G) Listing of Equity Share : The BSE Limited (BSE)
on Stock Exchanges Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001.

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051.

H) Stock code : 532613 (BSE) 
VIPCLOTHNG (NSE)

I) ISIN :  INE450G01024

J) Stock Market Data

Month BSE Ltd. (BSE)                 National Stock Exchange of India Limted (NSE)

High (in `) Low (in `) High (in `)

April, 2021 14.43 11.76 14.50 11.60

May,2022 17.20 12.65 17.20 12.80

June, 202 19.45 16.20 19.10 16.10

July, 2021 27.80 16.00 27.60 15.80

August, 2021 25.45 16.00 25.70 16.00

September, 2021 19.80 16.60 19.50 16.45

October, 2021 19.20 16.00 19.10 16.05

November, 2021 23.50 16.50 23.45 16.60

December, 2021 23.25 18.05 23.25 18.05

January, 2022 31.65 21.80 31.40 21.75

February, 2022 28.35 20.70 28.25 20.50

March, 2022 26.95 22.05 26.90 22.40

Low (in `)

Source: Website of the BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.



Slab of no of Shareholding No. of Share holders % of Shareholders No. of shares held % of total shares held

1 - 500

501 - 1000

1001 - 2000

2001 - 3000

3001  - 4000

4001 - 5000

5001 - 10000

10001 -  ******

Total

25152

3969

2255

751

344

386

484

477

33818

74.37

11.74

6.67

2.22

1.02

1.14

1.43

1.41

100

3951569

3365792

3591024

1945281

1259916

1844718

3648333

62989886

82596519

4.78

4.08

4.35

2.36

1.52

2.23

4.42

76.26

100
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Distribution of Shareholders as on March 31, 2022

Share price performance in comparison to broad based indices – BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty 

Share price performance relative to BSE Sensex based on the share price on March 31, 2022.

Share price performance relative to Sensex based on the share price on March 31, 2022.

(Sources: compiled from data available on BSE & NSE website) 



No. of Shares % of  shares  

Holding in dematerialized form 8,16,95,397 98.91

Holding in physical form 9,01,122 1.09

Total 8,25,96,519 100.00
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K)  Shareholding pattern as on March 31, 2022

Category No. of Share held % of total shares held

1. Indian Promoters & Person Acting in Concert 4,09,04,038 49.52

Sub-total 4,09,04,038 49.52

2.1 Mutual Funds & UTI 875 0.00

2.2 Foreign portfolio investors 3,00,872 0.36

Sub-total 3,01,747 0.36

3.1 Bodies Corporate 27,86,754 3.37

3.2 IEPF 7,82,445 0.95

3.3 Indian Public 3,51,22,645 42.52

3.4 Trust 500 0.00

3.5 NRIs. / NRNs. 7,53,671 0.91

3.6 Clearing Members 1,48,276 0.18

3.7 Hindu Undivided Family 17,96,443 2.18

3.8 NBFCs registered with RBI 0 0

Sub-total 41,39,07,734 50.12

Grand Total  8,25,96,519 100.00

L).   Dematerialization of Shares:

About 98.91 % of the shares of the Company have been dematerialized as on March 31, 2022. The Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby 
shareholders can dematerialized their shares. The equity shares of the Company are traded at BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited.  

Reconciliation of share capital audit report of the Company obtained from Practising Company Secretary has been submitted to 
Stock Exchanges within stipulated time.

No. of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode:

The names and addresses of the Depositories are as under:

1. National Securities Depository Ltd.
   

Add: Trade World, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapathi Bapat Marg, 
Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013.

2. Central Depository Services (India) Limited

Add: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 28th Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 023.

M).    Share Transfer System: 

Applications for transfer of shares held in physical form are received at the office of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the 
Company. Investors Grievance Committee approves valid transfers of shares and share certificates duly endorsed are dispatched 
within the prescribed time.

Shares held in dematerialized form are electronically traded in the Depository and the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the 
Company periodically receive from the depository the beneficiary holdings so as to enable them to update the records and to send all 
corporate communications, dividend warrants, etc.
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N)     Plant Locations of VIP Clothing Limited:

Note:*In the Board meeting dated 30th May, 2022 the Board of directors of the Company has approved the Memorandum of 
Understanding with regards to Asset Monetization by way of Sale of leasehold rights in respect of Umbergaon Plot, situated within 
the Village limits of Daheri, Taluka- Umbergaon, District- Valsad.

O) Address for Investors Correspondence: 

Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the following address:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd. : C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083.
Tel No. - 022 49186000 Fax No. - 022 49186060
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

For transfer, dematerialisation or any other query regarding the shares in physical form and any other general queries please contact 
to our registrar and for shares held in dematerialised form please contact to your Depository Participants.

In case of difficulty investors are advised to correspond with the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company at the 
following address:

VIP Clothing Limited :  C-6, Road No.  22, MIDC, 
 Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093

  Tel No.: 022 28257624 
  Fax No.: 022 28371023  
  Email:investor.relations@viporg.com

DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company.  All 
Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for financial year 2021-22. 
Requisite declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is given below;

“I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, affirmation that 
they have complied with the Codes of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management of the Company in respect of the 
financial year 2021-22.”

Sunil J. Pathare
Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN: 00192182)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Factory Location Activity

(i) Chinnakkully Village, Pappampatti Panchayat, Coimbatore, Tamil Nadu - 641016.

*(ii) Plot No. 92/94, New GIDC, Umbergaon, Valsad, Gujarat  - 396 171. Stitching Unit

(iii) S. F. No. 125, 126 & 127, Appachimarmadam, Thingalur, Erode, Tamil Nadu – 638 055.

Wind Mill 

Stitching Unit

Sd/-



COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

To
The Board of Directors
VIP Clothing Limited
Mumbai

Sub: Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.

I, Sunil Pathare, Chairman and Managing Director of VIP Clothing Limited hereby certify that as per the Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022 and that to the best of our 
knowledge and belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any  material fact or contain statements that might be 
misleading;

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Companies code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and 
the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they 
have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee;

1. The significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. The significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements; and

3. The instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting.
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Devendra Vays
Chief Financial Officer

Sunil J. Pathare
Chairman & Managing Director 
(DIN 00192182)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Certificate from Rakesh Sanghani, Practising Company Secretary, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated under the Listing Regulations, is attached to the Board's Report forming part of Annual Report.



PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON
 COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

[Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members,
VIP Clothing Limited
C-6, Road No.22, MIDC
Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by VIP Clothing Limited having CIN: 
L18101MH1991PLC059804 and having registered office at C-6, Road No.22, MIDC, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 (hereinafter 
referred to as the ‘Company’), produced before me by the Company for the year ended on 31st March 2022 for the purpose of issuing this 
Certificate in accordance with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India is the responsibility of the management alongwith the Board of Directors. The preparation of the Corporate Governance 
Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting 
records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

Our examination was limited to review of procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 
of the conditions of the corporate. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion of the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and the representation made by the Directors 
and the Management, we hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 subject to the following:

I). As per Regulation 17(2) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015, there should not be gap of more than 120 days between two consecutive Board Meetings and two consecutive 
Audit Committee Meetings. However, there was gap of more than 120 days between two consecutive Board Meetings and two 
consecutive Audit Committee Meetings respectively during the Quarter-I of FY 2021-22.

ii). The Corporate Governance Report submitted by the Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 had a typo-error mistake 
and the reporting on the category of the Director - Mrs. Meher Castelino was erroneously selected & reported as Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director.

The Company, in furtherance to the above, intimated that there was a typo-error mistake and the reporting on the category of the 
Director – Mrs. Meher Castelino. The designation was erroneously selected & reported as Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Director.

The Company had submitted revised Corporate Governance Report for the quarter ended September 30, 2021 on November 09, 
2021.

iii). The National Stock Exchange of India had, on March 21, 2022, sought clarification from the Company on under the undermentioned 
observation for the Shareholding pattern submitted by the Company for the quarter ended December 31, 2021:

‘Entity covered as promoter/promoter group in System Driven Disclosures (SDD) for Insider Trading (as per SEBI circular dated 
September 09, 2020), however not appearing as promoter/promoter group as per Table II of shareholding pattern (SHP) or vice-
versa’

The Company, in response to the above, intimated that at the time of uploading the data in System driven disclosure the option of 
mentioning the shareholding details whether in Demat or Physically was not available. The other details as required were filled in and 
the file was uploaded accordingly.

We further state that this report is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor the efficiency of effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations 
under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or 
assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come 
without our prior consent in writing.

___________________
Rakesh Sanghani
Practising Company Secretary
FCS No. 7647
C P No.: 6302

UDIN: F007647D000761961

Place: Mumbai
Date: 08/08/2022
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OVERVIEW

The textile industry is one of the oldest industries in India since the ancient age. Different types of textile fibres are produced in India, 
among which cotton, jute, silk, and wool are the major ones. Both skilled officials and unskilled labourers are needed to run this business 
smoothly. Thus, the textile industry serves as the platform offering a huge number of employment opportunities to eligible people in India.  
The products of the Indian textile industry with the traditional designs and textures are very popular all over the world.  People associated 
with this industry hope to see a great comeback in coming years, overcoming the setback during the past 2 years due to the pandemic 
situation.

SEVERAL OBSTACLES FACED BY THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY RECENTLY

The Indian government imposed GST with higher rates on industries. So, the textile industry now finds it harder to pay the taxes on their 
sales. Therefore, business owners are quite agitated due to its negative impact. Cotton textile is the major player in the Indian textile 
industry. The price of cotton has risen too much now, which is a major setback for textile industry owners. They find it hard to maintain their 
supply chain due to this price hike. The high cost of power in India is another hindrance to textile production. Most modern machines are 
power-driven, which raises the overall production costs for business owners. Unfavourable government policies in India also obstructed 
the growth of the textile industry. 

USEFUL MEASURES TAKEN BY THE GOVERNMENT FOR THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY

Fortunately, the Indian government has taken a series of positive steps to support the textile industry in this country. The Union Ministry of 
Textiles is more active in developing the textile industry, by constant coordination with business owners of this sector. The Union Budget 
for 2022 – 23 also announced some benefits that can help in the growth of the Indian textile industry.

The Indian government has allowed 100% Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) in the textile industry. The National Technical Textiles Mission 
was proposed in the Union Budget for 2020 -21. It will be active till 2023 – 24 with an estimated expense of Rs 1480 crore for the 
betterment of the textile industry.

THE FUTURE OF THE INDIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRY IN 2022 AND BEYOND

India is now recognized as the largest producer of cotton and jute garments in the world. There is tough competition from China, 
Bangladesh, Pakistan, and Vietnam for exporting textile products in the global market. However, the Indian textile industry still 
manages for a comeback even after the decline of the business in 2020 – 21. Since the textile industry not only comprises large textile 
mills and high-end garment boutiques, self-employed artisans from rural areas are also promoted through various schemes. All garment 
manufacturing units are returning to the normal state though at a slow pace at present.

THE EVOLUTION & GROWTH OF INNERWEAR MARKET IN INDIA

Today, the innerwear segment in India has witnessed unprecedented growth, all thanks to demand of stylish, sensuous and premium 
quality. The innerwear category has broadened from being a basic requirement to designer wear with emphasis on styling and comfort. 
The women’s innerwear or the lingerie growth story in India is at its most promising phase right now with increasing demand for stylish, 
sensuous and premium innerwear. The Indian lingerie is no more a hush- hush segment but a more evolved one which has attracted a 
large number of women openly demanding for the most attractive and innovative piece with uber confidence. This has also given the 
brands an opportunity to play with designs, cuts, colours, styles, etc. Besides innovation, conscious brands and even consumers have 
also begun to explore innerwear ranges which are eco-friendly. Not only for brands – both established and start-ups – innerwear category 
is yielding great sales numbers for even e-commerce marketplaces. 

KEY MARKET DYNAMICS AND GROWTH DRIVERS

The Company since long engaged in the manufacture and marketing of innerwear under brand name VIP, Frenchie, Feelings and Leader. 
In Previous two years Company has also launched Mask, dhoti-Leisurewear and brand Brat for children.  The Company has strong recall 
value of brand in the market with robust sales channel from distribution & wholesales to modern trade, institution, e-commerce and retail 
store sales channel to cater the needs of the consumer. The growth of innerwear segment, in India, can be attributed to the introduction of 
various international brands and other regional players. 

The preference for visually appealing intimate apparel among fashion-conscious customers, especially women, is driving the global 
intimate apparel market growth. The increase in the number of working women, the rise in demand from developing countries, and the 
recovery from the negative impacts of the pandemic are some of the drivers of the market growth. The demand for luxury, premium, and 
high-fashion women's intimate apparel products has also increased. Such factors will propel the growth of the market during the forecast 
period.

The present market trends show an inclination amongst Indian consumers to spend more on innerwear, leading to aggressive growth of 
this category especially in premium and luxury price segments. The recent mode of retailing through online channels has permeated into 
the innerwear category as well giving it much exposure to the consumers. 
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It is evident that Indian innerwear industry has come a long way in last decade and perception of today's consumer towards innerwear has 
changed. The category is no more considered a basic necessity but a fashion indulgence which gives confidence and feel good factor.

i. Growing Indian middle class- moving up ladder – Rising disposable income, economic growth and dual income households has 
led in the emergence of a middle class which is ready to spend and experiment with fashion and style. With more income to spend the 
middle class has become more brand conscious. This has led to higher value and volume.

ii. Change from need driven to aspiration driven buying – The recent consumer trends show that price is not the most important 
criteria anymore for this segment. For evolving consumers, looking good has become an important aspect of life. Therefore, 
spending on apparel, personal care and grooming is on the rise. Occasion specific products like seamless bras, strapless bras, 
padded bras, bralettes, etc. are being sought. There has been a rising demand for functionality based women's innerwear like 
shapewear, tummy tuckers, etc. for women desiring a slimmer look; non-wired brassieres for woman facing comfort issues after 
prolonged use of wired ones; and sports bras suitable for physically active women.

iii. Emergence of online retail channels – The emergence of online retail channels has bolstered sales of innerwear among the youth. 
The fashion conscious women residing in tier I, II cities with limited access to brick and mortar stores are most benefitted through the 
emergence of online retail in innerwear segment. It has been witnessed that women are the key buyers of innerwear available on 
online channels.

RISK AND CONCERNS

The Company is exposed to various types of risks associated with business of the Company, which will be internal as well as external risk. 
One of the key risks faced by the Company in today's scenario is the fluctuations in the price of raw material. Any increase in prices of raw 
materials could create a strain on the operating margins of the Company. We operate in a highly competitive market with competitors who 
may have better ability to spend more aggressively on advertisement and marketing and more flexibility to respond to changing business 
and economic conditions. 

Further, there are regional or smaller competitors who have certain advantages over us. An increase in the amount of competition that we 
face could have a material adverse effect on our market share and sales. 

The Company has in place Risk Management procedure to identify and evaluate the risk on a regular basis. The Company has the Risk 
Management committee, who brain-storm on the various risks associated with the Company. The details of risk committee have been 
mentioned in the Corporate Governance report.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ADEQUACY
 
The Company has implemented adequate procedure and internal controls which provide reasonable assurance regarding reliability of 
financial reporting and preparation of financial statement. The Company has a regular check on expenses including capital expenditure. 
The Management considers and takes appropriate action on the recommendations made by the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and 
the Audit Committee of the Company.
 
In addition, the software solutions such as SAP, Distributor Management System, field assistance and number of other robust system 
provides the Company to control over various business processes, increases productivity, better inventory management, promotes 
quality, reduced material cost, effective human resources management, reduced overheads boosts profits, plan its sales, production and 
monitor and control the processes in case any deviation.

HUMAN RESOURCE & INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

As on March 31, 2022 the Company had 1035 people (Employees 345 + Workers 690) working directly and indirectly with the Company. 
The industrial relations in all units of the Company continue to be cordial. The skills, experience and passion of our people facilitate 
deeper customer understanding and engaging relationships and strengthen our brand value as a preferred employer. We continue to 
step up efforts to accelerate our value-based growth strategy and the overall development of human capital. We nurture our people by 
investing in their empowerment through learning and development, wellness, and safety besides providing contemporary workplace 
facilities.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF COMPANY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Key Financial Ratios

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
For VIP Clothing Limited

Sd/-

SUNIL J. PATHARE
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00192182

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022
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Particulars 2021-22 Change (%)

Return on Net Worth (%) -1.63% -1.14% -43.11

Return on Capital Employed (%) 3.26% 0.71% -357.23

Basic EPS (after exceptional items) in ` -0.27 -0.13 -107.69

Debtors Turnover 3.01 2.63 -14.64

Inventory Turnover 1.27 1.00 -26.76

Interest Coverage Ratio 0.56 0.10 -444.90

Current Ratio 1.41 1.42 0.22

Debt Equity Ratio 0.10 0.03 -283.18

Operating Profit Margin (%) 2.88% 2.08% -38.35

Net Profit Margin (%) -1.22% -0.73% -66.63

2020-21

Particulars 2021-22

Revenue from operation 18,175.31 14305.23

Profit before Interest & finance charge, Depreciation & Income Tax 898.71 504.46

Less : Finance Cost 925.84 1090.38

Less : Depreciation 384.82 393.40

Add : Other Income 375.13 206.61

Profit/(Loss) Before exceptional item and Tax -411.95 -979.32

Profit /(Loss) for the year (excluding OCI) -221.32 -104.55

Profit/(Loss) for the year (including OCI) -217.98 -154.23

2020-21

(` In Lakhs)



To the Members of VIP Clothing Limited

We have audited the financial statements of VIP Clothing Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and 
loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements 
for the year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
the Management report, Chairman’s statement, Director’s report etc but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

48

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Annual Report 2021-22

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 



Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements.

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, were audited by predecessor auditor whose report 
dated June 30, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

(c) The Balance sheet, the Statement of profit and loss, the Statement of changes in equity and the Statement of cash flow dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 
(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements – Refer 
Note 48 to the financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv. (1) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Other Matter

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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(2) The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, and according to the information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this regard 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

3. As required by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules 
thereunder.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the 
audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report] 

i. (a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) All the Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a 
regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature 
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, 
the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are 
duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and Equipment 
(including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company 
for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, 
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii. (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification, 
coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from Banks on the basis of 
security of current assets. Quarterly statements filed with such Banks are in agreement with the books of account.

iii. According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either directly or indirectly, 
granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of 
section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in 
accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

vi. The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the Central Government of India has 
not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in 
paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, 
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess 
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year 
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the Company, the outstanding dues of 
income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted in the books of account 
which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no 
previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of 
loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company 
has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination 
of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under the clause (ix)(e) of the order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, hence reporting under the clause (ix)(f) of the order is 
not applicable to the Company.

x. (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the 
year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xi. (a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither 
come across any instance of material fraud by the Company nor on the Company.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the course of audit of the 
financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022, accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year while determining 
the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures. 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the 
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of term loans during the year 
have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.
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xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions 
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable 
to company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and 
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without any valid 
Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.  Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, 
the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.  

(d) The Company does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 
(xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

xvii.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial ratios, ageing and expected 
date of realisation of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other  information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of audit report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the overall review of financial statements, Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 402.36 lakhs during the 
immediately preceding financial year but has not incurred any cash losses during the current financial year.

54Annual Report 2021-22

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Amrish Vaidya
Partner

Membership No. 101739
UDIN: 22101739AJWLHI7777

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022



[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even 
date to the Members of VIP Clothing Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of VIP Clothing Limited (“the Company”) as of March 
31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the 
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 Notes As at 

 March 31, 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3  3,194.19  3,427.46 
Right of use assets 3  248.04  323.18 
Other intangible assets 4  6,937.86  6,938.40 
Financial assets
  Investments 5  0.25  0.25 

Loans 6  9.86  6.98 
Other financial assets 7  99.98  97.78 

Other non-current assets 8  7.00  10.82 
Total non-current assets  10,497.18  10,804.87 
Current assets
Inventories 9  9,230.90  7,668.41 
Financial assets
  Trade receivables 10  6,041.41  6,036.28 

Cash and cash equivalents 11  133.82  429.41 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 12  372.37  344.13 
Loans 13  8.09  7.34 
Other financial assets 14  14.92  9.83 

Current tax assets (net) 15  42.78  34.09 
Other current assets 16  2,134.01  1,680.11 
Total current assets  17,978.30  16,209.60 
Total assets  28,475.48  27,014.47 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 17  1,651.93  1,651.93 
Other equity 18  11,687.31  11,853.29 
Total equity 13,339.24  13,505.22 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 19  1,002.88  312.58 
Lease Liabilities 38  133.95  207.00 
Other financial liabilities 20  552.89  636.50 

Provisions 21  33.83  33.83 
Employee benefit obligation 22  72.67  64.27 
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 35  627.14  817.77 
Total non-current liabilities  2,423.36  2,071.95 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 23  9,026.18  8,580.12 
Lease Liabilities 38  173.60  177.29 
Trade payables 24
i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  814.14  9.72 
ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,327.09  2,228.66 
Other financial liabilities 25  319.49  373.32 

Employee benefit obligation 22  7.66  24.60 
Other current liabilities 26  44.72  43.59 
Total current liabilities  12,712.88  11,437.30 
Total liabilities  15,136.24  13,509.25 
Total equity and liabilities  28,475.48  27,014.47 

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income

Revenue from operations 27  18,175.31  14,305.23 

Other income 28  375.13  206.61 

Total income  18,550.44  14,511.84 

Expenses

Cost of raw material consumed 29  12,357.25  6,639.70 

Purchase of Stock-in-trade  416.80  182.00 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 30  (2,012.75)  1,671.10 

Employee benefits expense 31  1,761.50  1,710.64 

Finance costs 32  925.84  1,090.38 

Depreciation and amortization expense 33  384.82  393.40 

Knitting and processing charges  2,301.73  1,668.80 

Freight expenses  697.45  473.40 

Other expenses 34  2,129.75  1,661.74 

Total expenses  18,962.39  15,491.16 

Loss before tax  (411.95)  (979.32)

Tax expense 35

Current tax  -    -   

Deferred tax benefit  (190.63)  (874.77) 

Total tax expense  (190.63)  (874.77) 

Loss for the year  (221.32)  (104.55)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement on defined benefit liability (net of tax)  21.79  2.32 

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value of cash flow hedges through other comprehensive income (net of tax)  (18.45)  (52.00)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  3.34  (49.68)

Total comprehensive income for the year  (217.98)  (154.23)

Earnings per share 36

Basic  (0.27)  (0.13)

Diluted  (0.27)  (0.13)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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 Year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

   

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2021

   

Annual Report 2021-22

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax from: 

Continuing operations before exceptional items  (411.95)  (979.32)

Discontinued operations - -

Loss before tax including discontinued operations  (411.95)  (979.32)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses  384.82  392.96 

Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net)  58.30  -   

Gain on cancellation of lease  (6.64)  -   

Provision for bad and doubtful debts  250.11  301.39 

Gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)  3.28  (3.40)

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans  28.73  3.11 

Interest income  (15.18)  (18.91)

Rental income  (19.29)  (16.96)

Finance cost  765.33  1,152.02 

Liabilities / sundry balances no longer required written back  (168.14) -

 1,281.32  1,810.21 

Operating profit before working capital changes  869.37  830.89 

Changes in working capital

(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (1,562.49)  1,568.73 

Increase in trade receivables  (241.20)  (1,476.02)

(Increase) / decrease in loans  (3.62)  25.13 

(Increase) / decrease in other financial assets  (1.75)  2.93 

Increase in other current assets  (455.47)  (121.07)

Increase in trade payables  1,050.64  60.34 

Decrease in provisions  (37.27)  (230.25)

Decrease in other financial liabilities  (137.44)  (68.85)

Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities  1.14  (3.93)

Decrease in working capital  (1,387.46)  (242.99)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations  (518.09)  587.90 

Direct taxes paid (net)  (8.69)  (8.27)

Cash flow from exceptional items  -    -   

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)  (526.78)  579.63 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment for purchase property, plant and equipment (net)  (6.96)  (51.91)

Investment in fixed deposits with maturity of more than three months  (28.24)  (101.47)

Rent received  19.29  16.96 

Interest received  18.39  18.91 

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities (B)  2.48  (117.51)

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)  1,115.18  986.06 

Proceeds from non current other financial liabilities (net)  -    50.94 

Lease rentals paid against lease liability  (195.93)  (160.84)

Finance cost paid  (690.54)  (1,090.38)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C)  228.71  (214.22)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (295.59)  247.90 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  429.41  181.51 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  133.82  429.41 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 11)

(a) Cash on hand  0.08  0.09 

(b) Balances with banks

(i) In current accounts  133.74  429.32 

Total cash and cash equivalents at end of the year  133.82  429.41 

(i) Figures in brackets represent cash outflow.

(Ii) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS-7-Cash Flow Statement notified 
under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2022 

   

 Year ended 
 March 31, 2021
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A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:

Particulars

    

 

B. OTHER EQUITY:

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Capital Securities General

Total

Redemption Premium Reserve
Reserve     

 Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
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Balance as at April 1,  2021  4,035.00  7,472.40  817.30  (419.41)  (52.00)  11,853.29 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    (221.32)  -    (221.32)

Additions for the year  -    -    -    -    -  -

Deletions for the year  -    -    -    -    52.00  52.00 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    21.79 (18.45)  3.34 

Total Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    (199.53)  33.55  (165.98)

Balance as at March 31, 2022  4,035.00  7,472.40  817.30  (618.94)  (18.45)  11,687.31 

March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount 

March 31, 2021

No. of shares Amount 

Equity shares of INR 2/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at April 1, 2021  8,25,96,519  1,651.93  8,25,96,519  1,651.93 

Changes in equity share capital during the year - - - -

Balance as at March 31, 2022  8,25,96,519  1,651.93  8,25,96,519  1,651.93 

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Retained 
Earnings

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow
 Hedges

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Capital Securities General

Total

Redemption Premium Reserve
Reserve     

Balance as at April 1, 2020  4,035.00  7,472.40  817.30  (317.21)  -    12,007.49 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    (104.52)  -    (104.52)

Addition for the year - - - - - -

Deletions for the year  -    -    -    -    - - 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    2.32  (52.00)  (49.68)

Total Comprehensive Income  -    -    -    (102.20)  (52.00)  (154.20)

Balance as at March 31, 2021  4,035.00  7,472.40  817.30  (419.41)  (52.00)  11,853.29 

For the year ended March 31,  2021*

Retained 
Earnings

Effective 
portion of 
Cash Flow
 Hedges

* There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors

Summary of significant accounting policies    2

The accompanying notes 1 to 52 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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1. General information

VIP Clothing Limited (the ‘Company’) is domiciled in India. The Company was incorporated on January 14, 1991. The Company’s 
Identification No. is L18101MH1991PLC059804. The Company’s registered office is at C-6, Road No. 22, MIDC, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai- 400093. The Company is a leading Manufacturer, Marketing and Distributor of Men’s and Women’s innerwear and 
socks under the brand name VIP, Frenchie, Feelings, Leader and Brat. The equity shares of Company are listed on Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE).

2. Significant accounting policies

Significant accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

a) Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards "(Ind AS)" notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Act (Ind AS compliant 
Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual & going concern basis. Accounting policies have been 
consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for defined benefit 
plans -plan assets measured at fair value and certain other financial assets and financial liabilities.

c) Current / non-current classification

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification 
of its assets and liabilities. The Company presents its assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period

d) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimate and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date, reported amount of 
revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date. The estimates 
and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the 
relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these 
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates, if 
any, are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years affected. Refer Note 2.22 for 
detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.

e) Rounding off of amounts

The financial statements are reported in Indian Rupee which is functional currency of the Company and all the values are 
rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000).

2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at acquisition cost and is not depreciated. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Acquisition cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Spare parts are recognised when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, otherwise, such items are classified 
as inventory.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to 
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets which are not ready for intended use before such date are 
disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

Depreciation is recognized (other than on capital work-in-progress) on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives of 
assets. Depreciation on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date 
of each addition till the date of sale/retirement. Depreciation on sale from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date 
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. The estimated useful lives of assets are stated below:

*Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lease period, which corresponds with the useful lives of the assets.

Based on the technical expert’s assessment of useful life, certain items of property plant and equipment are being depreciated 
over useful lives different from the prescribed useful lives under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Management believes 
that such estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be 
used.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, if any, as appropriate.

2.3 Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortisation/ depletion and 
impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. 

Expenditure incurred on acquisition of intangible assets which are not ready to use at the reporting date is disclosed under 
“Intangible assets under development”. 

An intangible asset shall be recognized if, and only if: (a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and (b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The entity assesses the 
probability of expected future economic benefits using reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent management’s 
best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset. An intangible asset is measured 
initially at cost.

Indefinite-life intangible assets comprises of brands for which there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which they are 
expected to generate net cash inflows. These are considered to have an indefinite life, given the durability of the brands and the 
level of marketing support. For indefinite-life intangible assets, the assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 
whether it continues.

Amortisation method and periods

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation 
method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted 
for on a prospective basis. 
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Particulars Useful Life (in years)

Leasehold improvement* Lease period
Building 30 years
Plant and Machinery 15 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical installations and equipment 10 years
Computers:
 -Servers 6 years
 -End user devices such as, desktops, laptops etc. 3 years

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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The Company amortises intangible assets (definite useful life) over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 
The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Other intangible assets  Estimated useful life

Computer software  6 years

Indefinite-life intangible assets i.e. brands are not amortised but are tested for impairment on an annual basis.

2.4  Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of 
the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by 
the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 
is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

For non-financial assets, an assessment is made at each reporting period end or whenever triggering event occurs as to whether 
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Company makes an estimation of the recoverable amount. 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimations used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, or had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 

2.5 Foreign currency transactions

a) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which 
the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Gains/losses 
arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction date and settlement date are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate prevailing at the 
year end and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.6  Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the 
asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

► In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

► In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.  The 
Company's management determines the policies and procedures for fair value measurement such as derivative instrument.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

►  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  

► Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable 

► Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.
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2.7 Revenue Recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" with modified retrospective approach. Ind AS 
115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue to be 
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring 
goods or services.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of 
returns, trade allowances, rebates, Goods and service tax and amounts collected on behalf of third parties

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer. The 
revenue is measured on the basis of the consideration defined in the contract with customer, including variable consideration, 
such as discounts, or other contractual reductions.

Sale of services 

The Company recognises revenue as or when the performance obligation in relation the service is satisfied by the Company 
based on terms of the agreements with customers and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

Revenue in excess of invoices are classified as unbilled revenue, while invoicing in excess of revenue are classified income 
received in advance.

Insurance claims are recognised when its amount can be measured reliably, and ultimate collection is reasonably certain. 

Interest income is recognised on a basis of effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no 
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

Other operating revenue - export incentives

Export Incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export on accrual basis when there is no uncertainty in 
receiving the same.

2.8 Taxes

Tax expense for the year, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determination of the net profit or loss for the 
year. 

a) Current income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the year-
end date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements. Deferred income tax is also not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination 
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is 
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are 
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be 
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet 
date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence 
to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
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2.9 Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Buildings and Plant & Machineries. The Company assesses 
whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 

(i) The contract involves the use of an identified asset 

(ii) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 

(iii) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease 
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) 
and leases of low value assets. For these short-term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease 
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any 
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are 
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted 
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability 
is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying 
amount to reflect the lease payments made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or 
rate used to determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as 
financing cash flows.

2.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location 
and condition are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes 
purchase price, (excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities), freight 
inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition. In determining the 
cost, weighted average cost method is used. 

Work in progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of 
work in progress and manufactured finished goods is determined on the weighted average basis and comprises direct material, 
cost of conversion and other costs / overheads incurred in bringing these inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 
of traded goods is determined on a weighted average basis. 

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management’s estimate based on demand and market of 
the inventories. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on item by item basis.

2.11 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
Balance sheet date.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

Annual Report 2021-22

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



66

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits net of bank 
overdraft with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash in banks and short-term 
deposits net of bank overdraft.

2.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs..

2.14 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of 
another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

a) Financial assets

i. Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

ii. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortised cost; or

b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or 

c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is 
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 
and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, 
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange 
gains and losses which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement of Profit and Loss and 
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the 
effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which 
Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company 
makes such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is 
irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, 
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale 
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the 
profit and loss.
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iii. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost and 
FVOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether 
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, 
lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a 
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss 
allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 
financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are 
possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract 
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When 
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of the financial instrument (including 
prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the 
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining 
contractual term of the financial instrument.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the year is recognised as income/expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortised cost is presented as an 
allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces 
the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance 
from the gross carrying amount.

iv. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual 
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognised only if substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity has not transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

b) Financial liabilities

i. Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and at 
amortised cost, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on 
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is 
included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

iii. Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
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of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance costs. 

c) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

d) Derivative Instruments and Hedge Accounting

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a derivative financial instrument such as foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its 
exposure to foreign exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting year. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the 
timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedge item.

Hedge Accounting

The Company designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives in respect of foreign currency as either 
cash flow hedge or fair value hedge. Hedges of foreign currency risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow 
hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the 
hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedging 
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to hedged 
risk.

(i) Fair value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability 
that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument 
and the change in the hedged item attributable to hedged risk are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in 
the line item relating to the hedged item.

The Company designates only the spot component for derivative instruments in fair value Hedging relationship. The 
Company defers changes in the forward element of such instruments in hedging reserve and the same is amortised 
over the period of the contract. 

When the Company designates only the intrinsic value of the option as the hedging instrument, it account for the 
changes in the time value in OCI. This amount is be removed from OCI and recognised in P&L, either over the period 
of the hedge if the hedge is time related, or when the hedged transaction affects P&L if the hedge is transaction 
related.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when 
it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the fair 
value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit and 
loss from that date.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives and non-derivatives that are designated and qualify as 
cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow 
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in Statement of profit 
and loss. 

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity relating to effective 
portion as described above are reclassified to profit and loss in the years when the hedged item affects profit and loss, 
in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the 
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains or losses are transferred from equity (but not 
as a reclassification adjustment) and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-
financial liability. 

Annual Report 2021-22

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



69

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when 
it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately 
recognised in profit and loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss 
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

2.15 Employee benefits 

a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months 
after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ 
services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

i. Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has 
no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry 
any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made to the 
regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on 
a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity (funded): The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible 
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to 
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the 
respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit 
method) at the end of each year.  Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the 
year in which they arise.

iii. Other long- term employee benefit obligations

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed 
within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the 
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected 
to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months from the 
end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability is actuarially 
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

2.16 Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity share capital. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options 
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company's 
earnings per share is the net profit or loss for the year after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto for the 
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all the years presented is adjusted for 
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares.

2.18 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 
maker. The Company has only one reporting segment i.e. Hosiery and others. Hence no separate segment information has been 
furnished in the financial statements.
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2.19 Government grant

Grant from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and the Company will comply with all attached conditions and grants will be received.

Government grants relating to the purchase of PPE are included in non-financial liabilities as deferred income and are credited to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within other 
income.

2.20 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion of the 
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Recent accounting development

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On March 23, 2022, MCA 
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the 
acquisition date. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and Equipment 

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, is not to be recognised 
in the profit or loss but is to be deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, 
and equipment. The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this amendment.

Ind AS 37 – Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that 
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or 
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge 
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The amendment is essentially a clarification and the 
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments

The amendment clarifies that while performing the ‘10 percent test’ for derecognition of a financial liability, for computing the 
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, for determining fees paid net of fees received, a borrower should 
include only fees paid or received between borrower and lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender 
on the other‘s behalf. This amendment is under Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021). The Company does not expect the above 
amendment/ improvement to have any significant impact on its financial statements.

2.22 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

   Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year-end date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are 
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements 
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market 
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions 
when they occur. 

a) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of 
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies.

b) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 
During the current year, the directors have determined that no changes are required to the useful lives of assets
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c) Provision for litigations and contingencies

The provision for litigations and contingencies are determined based on evaluation made by the management of the 
present obligation arising from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits, which involves judgements around estimating the ultimate outcome of such past events and 
measurement of the obligation amount. Due to the judgements involved in such estimations the provisions are sensitive to 
the actual outcome in future periods

d) Defined benefit plans and other long-term benefits (gratuity benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using actuarial valuations. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities 
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumptions are the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields 
available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate 
takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors on long term basis. For details refer Note 37.

e) Impairment of non-financial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating units based 
on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions 
about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate.

f) Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Company reviews the condition of its inventories and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory 
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use. Company estimates the net realisable value for such 
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The Company carries out an 
inventory review at each balance sheet date and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. The Company 
reassesses the estimation on each balance sheet date.

g) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables. The Company 
uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix 
is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward 
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment hypothecated as charge against borrowings.

Refer to Note 23 for information on property, plant and equipment hypothecated as charge against borrowings by the Company

3.2 Revaluation of Assets

During the year, the Company has not revalued Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars

Owned assets

Leasehold Land  42.24  -    -    42.24  6.52  0.44  -    6.96  35.28 

Freehold Land  1,290.83  -    -    1,290.83  -    -    -    -    1,290.83 

Building Warehouse  5.88  -    -    5.88  5.35  0.23  -    5.58  0.30 

Building Factory  1,885.94  -    (4.53)  1,881.41  720.34  63.57  (1.22)  782.69  1,098.72 

Plant and Machinery  2,191.73  -    (0.74)  2,190.99  1,420.88  140.30  (0.71)  1,560.47  630.52 

Furniture and Fixtures  72.33  -    -    72.33  42.41  6.53  -    48.94  23.39 

Office Equipment  80.01  1.46  -    81.47  58.11  6.75  -    64.86  16.61 

Vehicles  160.99  -    -    160.99  72.29  13.80  -    86.09  74.90 

Electrical Installation  8.63  -    -    8.63  3.67  0.43  -    4.10  4.53 

Computers  201.38  5.56  -    206.94  182.93  4.90  -    187.83  19.11 

Right-of-use Assets

Building  497.10  149.37  (95.38)  551.09  191.39  137.35  (25.69)  303.05  248.04 

Plant and equipment  29.95  -    (29.95)  -    12.48  9.98  (22.46)  -    -   

Total  6,467.01  156.39  (130.60)  6,492.80  2,716.37  384.28  (50.08)  3,050.57  3,442.23 

 Gross block Depreciation Net Block

As at 
April 1, 2021

Additions/ 
Adjustments  

Deductions/ 
Adjustments 

As at
March 31, 2022 

As at 
April 1, 2021

For the year Deductions/ 
Adjustments

As at
March 31, 2022 

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars

Owned assets

Leasehold Land  42.24  -    -    42.24  6.10  0.44  (0.02)    6.52  35.72 

Freehold Land  1,290.83  -    -    1,290.83  -    -    -    -    1,290.83 

Building Warehouse  5.88  -    -    5.88  4.90  0.45  -    5.35  0.53 

Building Factory  1,885.94  -    -    1,885.94  656.73  63.61  -    720.34  1,165.61 

Plant and Machinery  2,191.73  -    -    2,191.73  1,245.59  175.29  -    1,420.88  770.85 

Furniture and Fixtures  72.33  -    -    72.33  35.15  7.26  -    42.41  29.92 

Office Equipment  78.76  1.25  -    80.01  50.68  7.43  -    58.11  21.90 

Vehicles  178.30  54.61  (71.92)  160.99  129.16  11.47  (68.34)  72.29  88.70 

Electrical Installation  8.28  0.35  -    8.63  3.27  0.40  -    3.67  4.95 

Computers  198.70  2.68  -    201.38  176.07  6.86  -    182.93  18.44 

Right-of-use Assets

Building  434.23  67.49  (4.62)  497.10  89.73  106.28  (4.62)  191.39  305.71 

Plant and equipment  29.95  -    -    29.95  2.50  9.98  -    12.48  17.47 

Total  6,417.17  126.38  (76.54)  6,467.01  2,399.88  389.46  (72.98)  2,716.37  3,750.64 

 Gross block Depreciation Net Block

As at 
April 1, 2020

Additions/ 
Adjustments  

Deductions/ 
Adjustments 

As at
March 31, 2021

As at 
April 1, 2020

For the year Deductions/ 
Adjustments

As at
March 31, 2021 

As at
March 31, 2021

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



Particulars

Computer Software  268.63  -    -    268.63  254.05  0.54  -    254.59  14.04 

License/Brands  6,923.82  -    -    6,923.82  -    -    -    -    6,923.82 

Total  7,192.45  -    -    7,192.45  254.05  0.54  -    254.59  6,937.86 

 Gross block Amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1, 2021

Additions/ 
Adjustments  

Deductions/ 
Adjustments 

As at
March 31, 2022 

As at 
April 1, 2021

For the year Deductions/ 
Adjustments

As at
March 31, 2022 

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars

Computer Software  268.63  -    -    268.63  250.11  3.94  -    254.05  14.58 

License/Brands  6,923.82  -    -    6,923.82  -    -    -    -    6,923.82 

Total  7,192.45  -    -    7,192.45  250.11  3.94  -    254.05  6,938.40 

 Gross block Amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1, 2020

Additions/ 
Adjustments  

Deductions/ 
Adjustments 

As at
March 31, 2021 

As at 
April 1, 2020

For the year Deductions/ 
Adjustments

As at
March 31, 2021 

As at
March 31, 2021

4.1 There were no intangible under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original pan during the year ended March 31, 2021 and 
March 31, 2022.

5  Financial Assets- Investments

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)

Unquoted equity shares

250 (March 31, 2021 - 250) equity shares of ₹100 each fully paid-up in 

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.  0.25  0.25 

Total (equity instruments)  0.25  -   

Current  -    -   

Non- Current  0.25  0.25 

 0.25  0.25 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  0.25  0.25 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments  -    -   

As at 
March 31, 2021

6  Non- current financial assets - Loans 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Other loans

Secured considered good

Loans/advances to employees  9.86  6.98 

Total  9.86  6.98 

As at 
March 31, 2021

4  Other intangible assets
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7  Other financial assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Security deposits  89.82  87.68 

In Fixed deposit accounts with maturity for more than 12 months from balance sheet date.  8.10  10.10 

Others 

    Advance payment towards gratuity fund (refer note 37)  2.06  -   

 99.98  97.78 

As at 
March 31, 2021

8  Other non-current assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Prepaid rent  7.00  10.82 

Total other non-current other assets  7.00  10.82 

As at 
March 31, 2021
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9  Inventories*

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Raw material in stock  1,855.91  2,358.95 

Packing material in stock  536.95  484.16 

Work in progress in stock  1,853.46  1,579.33 

Finished goods in stock  3,804.23  1,844.81 

Stock in Trade  1,180.35  1,401.16 

 9,230.90  7,668.41 

*Hypothecated as charge against borrowings refer note 23

As at 
March 31, 2021

10  Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Secured, considered good  547.09  625.56 

Unsecured Considered good  5,494.32  5,410.72 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  301.16  310.00 

 6,342.57  6,346.28

Less-Allowance for bad and doubtful debts  (301.16)  (310.00)

 6,041.41  6,036.28 

Further classified as:

Receivable from related parties  -    -   

Receivable from others  6,041.41  6,036.28 

 6,041.41  6,036.28 

As at 
March 31, 2021

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Particulars Not 
Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipts

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed – considered good  2,947.25  1,524.49  194.01  480.25  338.44  298.70  5,783.16 

(ii) Undisputed – which have significant increase 
in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    301.16  301.16 

(iii) Undisputed – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed – considered good  -    0.02  -    0.11  41.86  216.26  258.25 

(v) Disputed – which have significant increase 
in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
(Disputed + Undisputed)  -    -    -    -    -    (301.16)  (301.16)

Total  2,947.25  1,524.51  194.01  480.36  380.30  514.96  6,041.41 

Ageing of Trade Receivables
As on March 31, 2022

Particulars Not 
Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipts

Less than 
6 months

6 months 
- 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  than
3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed – considered good  2,793.80  1,339.56  408.72  651.91  368.55  325.02  5,887.56 

(ii) Undisputed – which have significant 
increase in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    310.00  310.00 

(iii) Undisputed – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed – considered good  -    -    -    -    16.00  132.71  148.72 

(v) Disputed – which have significant increase 
in credit risk  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 
(Disputed + Undisputed)  -    -    -    -    -    (310.00)  (310.00)

Total  2,793.80  1,339.56  408.72  651.91  384.56  457.73  6,036.28 

Note: Secured trade receivables are secured against security deposits from customers.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11  Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Balances with banks:

in current accounts            129.91                423.82 

in earmarked balances with banks - Unpaid dividend^                 3.33                   5.50 

Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 3 months                  0.50                       -   

Cash on hand                  0.08                   0.09 

              133.82               429.41 

^ Unpaid dividend would be transferred to Investors Education and Protection Fund as per statutory requirements as and when due

As at 
March 31, 2021



12  Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months from balance 

sheet date^  372.37  344.13 

 372.37  344.13 

^The Company has kept as a margin of fixed deposits to the extent of Rs.18.28 lakhs (March 31, 2021  of INR 18.44 lakhs) with 

banks for bank guarantees as lien.

As at 
March 31, 2021

13  Current financial assets - Loans 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Loans

Secured considered good

Loans/advances to employee  8.09  7.34 

Total  8.09  7.34 

As at 
March 31, 2021

14  Other financial assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Security deposits  8.25  -   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits  6.62  9.83 

Derivatives forward assets (forward contract)  0.05  -   

 14.92  9.83 

As at 
March 31, 2021
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15  Current tax assets 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Advance income tax (net of provisions amounting INR Nil (March 31, 2021: Nil))  42.78  34.09 

 42.78  34.09 

As at 
March 31, 2021

16  Other current assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Advance to suppliers  247.20  104.04 

Balance with Government authorities

     Sales tax refund receivable  427.88  427.87 

     GST receivables  1,301.69  1,019.88 

Export incentive receivables  101.64  51.43 

Prepaid expenses  55.60  76.89 

2,134.01  1,680.11 

As at 
March 31, 2021
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17  Share capital

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Authorized

15,00,00,000 (March 31,  2021: 15,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs.2/- each  3,000.00  3,000.00 

3,000.00  3,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 

8,25,96,519 (March 31, 2021: 8,25,96,519) equity shares of Rs.2/- each fully paid  1,651.93  1,651.93 

Total  1,651.93  1,651.93 

As at 
March 31, 2021

(A)  Equity shares

    

March 31, 2022

No. of shares Amount 

March 31, 2021

No. of shares Amount 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year  8,25,96,519  1,651.93  8,25,96,519  1,651.93 

Add: Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  8,25,96,519  1,651.93  8,25,96,519  1,651.93 

(i)    Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has two class of shares one is equity shares having par value of INR 2 per share. Each shareholder 
is entitled to one vote per share held. They entitle the holders to participate in dividends and dividend, if any declared is payable in 
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, 
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Name of shareholder

    

March 31, 2022

No. of shares % of holding 
in the class

March 31, 2021

No. of shares

Equity shares of INR 2 each fully paid

Sunil J. Pathare  1,67,42,008 20.27%  1,67,42,008 20.27%

Kapil J. Pathare  1,48,15,548 17.94%  1,48,15,548 17.94%

Lalita J. Pathare  73,38,652 8.88%  1,03,07,937 12.48%

Edelweiss Broking Limited  -    -  60,00,300 7.26%

(iii)    Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

% of holding 
in the class

Promoter name

    

% Change 
during the 

year

No. of
 shares

March 31, 2021

% of total 
shares

Sunil Jaykumar Pathare  1,67,42,008 20.27% 0%  1,67,42,008 0%

Kapil Jaykumar Pathare  1,48,15,548 17.94% 0%  1,48,15,548 17.94% 0%

Total  3,15,57,556 38.21% 0%  3,15,57,556 0%

20.27%

38.21%

(iv)   Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year

% Change 
during the 

year

March 31, 2022

% of total 
shares

No. of 
shares

(v) No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five 
years immediately preceding the current year end.

(Vi) No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year 
end.
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18  Other equity

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Capital redemption reserve  4,035.00  4,035.00 

Securities premium  7,472.40  7,472.40 

General reserve  817.30  817.30 

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss  (618.94)  (419.41)

Cash flow hedge reserve (OCI)  (18.45)  (52.00)

 11,687.31  11,853.29 

As at 
March 31, 2021

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Authorized

45,00,000 (March 31,  2021: 45,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each  4,500.00   

4,500.00  4,500.00 

The Company has preference share capital having a par value of INR 100 per share, referred to herin as preference share capital

4,500.00

As at 
March 31, 2021

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Preference shares

Nature and purpose of other reserves

Nature

Capital redemption reserve

Securities premium

General reserve 

Deficit in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss/ retained earnings

Cash flow hedge reserve (OCI)

Purpose of the reserves

This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the Companies Act 
2013.

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities 
premium. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of the 
Companies Act 2013

Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer 
of a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn and the 
Company can optionally transfer any amount from the surplus of profit and loss to the 
General reserves. This reserve to be utilised in accordance with the specific provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers 
to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders

Effective portion of cash flow hedges represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or 
losses arising on changes in fair value of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow 
hedges, which shall be reclassified to profit and loss only when the hedged transaction 
affects the profit and loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged 
item, consistent with the Company accounting policies

(A)  Capital redemption reserve (CRR)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Opening balance  4,035.00  4,035.00 

Add: Addition for the year  -    -   

Less: Deletion for the year  -    -   

Closing balance  4,035.00  4,035.00 
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Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  7,472.40  7,472.40 

Add : Securities premium credited on share issue  -    -   

Closing balance  7,472.40  7,472.40 

As at 
March 31, 2021

(B)  Securities premium (SP)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  817.30  817.30 

Add: Transfer during the year  -    -   

Closing balance  817.30  817.30 

As at 
March 31, 2021

General reserve (GR)
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Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Opening balance  (419.41)  (317.21)

Add: Net loss for the current year  (221.32)  (104.52)

Less: Re-measurement (gain)/loss on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax)  (21.79)  (2.32)

Closing balance  (618.94)  (419.41)

As at 
March 31, 2021

(D)  Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(E)  Cash flow hedge reserve (OCI)

Opening balance  (52.00)  -   

Add/(less): Transactions during the year (net of tax)  33.55  (52.00)

Closing balance  (18.45)  (52.00)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

Secured

(a) Term loan

From Bank 

Term loan from IDBI GECL  204.16  280.00 

Term loan from SBI GECL  780.00  -   

(b) Vehicle loan

Vehicle loan from YES bank  18.72  32.58 

Total non current maturities of long term borrowings  1,002.88  312.58 

As at 
March 31, 2021

19  Non-current borrowings

A. Terms of non-current borrowing are as under

Particulars Rate of interest (p.a.) Repayment terms

Non current, secured borrowings

Term loan from Banks Ranging from 7.65% to 8.70% Repayable in monthly instalments

Vehicle loan Ranging from 7.40% to 8.11% Repayable in monthly instalments
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B. Nature of security :

i. IDBI and SBI Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line ('GECL')  term loan secured by way of hypothecation of inventories, book 
debts and movable property, plant and equipment of the Company on paripassu basis with members in consortium and further 
secured by way of second charge of property situated at GIDC-Umbergaon (Gujarat), Thingalur (Tamil Nadu), Edyaarpalayam 
(Tamil Nadu), Kon village-Kalyan (Maharashtra).

ii. Vehicle loan is secured by Vehicle.

C.  Period and amount of default:

The Company has made no defaults in the payment of principal or interest during the year ended March 31, 2022.

D. The Company has also satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan.

E.

Particulars of Loans Purpose (as per 
Loan Agreement)

Whether used for the purpose 
stated in the loan Agreement

If no, mention the purpose 
for which it is utilised

YES Bank - Vehicle loan Purchase of Vehicle Yes None

YES Bank - Vehicle loan Purchase of Vehicle Yes None

IDBI - GECL Working capital Yes None

SBI - GECL Working capital Yes None

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20  Other non current financial liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

     Security deposits from customers  547.08  625.56 

     Retention money  5.81  4.65 

     Security deposit from lesee  -    6.29 

 552.89  636.50 

21  Provisions

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Provisions for compensation ^  33.83  33.83 

Total Provisions  33.83  33.83 

^High court of Madras has passed an award against the Company, under this award the Company was directed to pay Cotton 
Corporation of India Ltd. a sum of Rs. 33.83 lakhs in form of compensation for the loss suffered. However the Company has appeal in 
Supreme Court. The Company has made provision accordingly.

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 37)

Provision for gratuity (funded)  -    -    -    17.06 

Provision for leave encashment (unfunded)  72.67  64.27  7.66  7.54 

72.67  64.27  7.66 24.60 

Particulars

    

Long term 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Short term 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

22  Employee benefit obligation
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23  Short - term borrowings

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Secured, from bank

     Cash credit  2,368.98  4,611.86 

   FCNRB loan ^  4,554.60   2,438.93 

     Letter of credit  1,743.70  1,495.31 

Unsecured, Loans from related parties  50.00  -   

Current Maturity of Long term debts*  308.90  34.02 

Total short-term borrowings   9,026.18  8,580.12 

* Includes interest accrued on borrowings

^The Company entered into the Foreign Currency Non-resident Borrowing (‘FCNRB’) Agreement (hedged item) with SBI on February 
18, 2022 & February 24, 2022 and raised finance of US $ 33,00,000 & US $ 27,00,000 respectively. The said FCNRB loan was raised to 
finance for concessional interest rate compared to interest rate on cash credit . The rate of interest on the FCNRB loan is based on 
LIBOR for 6-month period + 4.50% p.a.

The FCNB loan repayment is expected in a single bullet for principal after 180 days and at monthly intervals for interest. In order to hedge 
the foreign exchange cash flow risk, the Company has entered into forward contracts (hedging instrument) hedging foreign exchange 
risk on principal & interest in USD. The forward contracts entered into by the Company is a derivative as defined in Ind AS 109.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Terms of current borrowing are as under

Particulars Rate of interest (p.a.) Repayment terms

Secured, from bank

Cash credit Ranging from 10.60% to 14.20% Repayable on demand

Letter of credit Ranging from 1.50% to 1.90% Repayment terms 90 to 120 days

Unsecured, Loans from related parties Nil Repayable on demand

B. Nature of security :

i. Cash credit and SBI FCNRB loan secured by way of hypothecation of inventories, book debts and movable property, plant and 
equipment of the Company and further secured by way of first charge of property situated at GIDC-Umbergaon (Gujarat), 
Thingalur (Tamil Nadu), Edyaarpalayam (Tamil Nadu), Kon village-Kalyan (Maharashtra).

C. The statements of current assets and stocks submitted by the Company with banks are materially in agreement with the books of 
accounts.



82

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Annual Report 2021-22

D. Disclosure as required by Ind AS 7 - "Cash Flow Statements" - changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Opening balance  8,847.57  8,107.11 

Non cash movement 

- Accrual of interest  755.34  942.08 

- Forex gain / (loss)  (8.41) 193.01   

Lease Liability assumed during the year  83.99  67.49 

Cash movement 

- Short term borrowings proceeds (net)  1,115.18  1,037.00 

- Principle repayment of long term borrowing  -    -   

- Interest payment  (690.54)  (1,090.38)

- Lease rentals paid against lease liability  (195.93)  (160.84)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows  295.60  (247.90)

Closing balance  10,202.79  8,847.57

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24  Trade payables

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  814.14  9.72 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,327.09  2,228.66

Total trade payables                           3,141.23  2,238.38 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

Principal  787.50  7.54 

Interest  26.64  2.18 

Total 814.14   9.72   

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year.  -    -   

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without 
adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.  -    -   

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 26.64    2.18   

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
MSMED Act.  -    -   

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:
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(I) MSME  2.18  -    2.68  1.58  2.39  0.89  9.72 

(ii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Others  543.46  1,123.07  473.19  69.05  19.89  -  2,228.66 

(iv)Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  545.64  1,123.07  475.88  70.63  22.28  0.89  2,238.38

Ageing of 
As at March 31, 2022

trade payables 

Particulars Unbilled 
Dues

Payables 
Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Less than 
 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  than
3 years

Total

(I) MSME  26.64  191.51  592.09  2.07  1.83  -    814.14 

(ii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Others  486.30  956.20  792.53  43.12  27.21  21.73  2,327.09 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  512.94  1,147.71  1,384.62  45.19  29.04  21.73  3,141.23 

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Unbilled 
Dues

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments

Less than 
 1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More  than
3 years

Total

Payables 
Not Due

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25  Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Derivative forward liability  -    7.41 

Other

     Unpaid dividends *  3.33  5.50 

     Advance from skill project  89.70  155.21 

     Employee benefits  226.46  205.20 

Total other financial liabilities  319.49  373.32 

26  Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Statutory due payable  42.60  38.63 

Goods and services tax payable  2.12  3.28 

Advance from customer  -    1.68 

Total other current liabilities  44.72  43.59 

* The figures reflect the position as at year end. The actual amount to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in this 
respect shall be determined on the due date.



84

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

Annual Report 2021-22

27  Revenue from operations

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers 

  Sale of products  17,923.40  14,098.75 

   17,923.40  14,098.75 

Other operating revenue

  Sale of scrap  58.53  29.58 

  Job work  32.74  138.23 

  Export incentives  73.09  38.67 

  Sale of export license  87.54  -   

 251.91  206.48 

Total revenue from operations  18,175.31  14,305.23

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Sale of products  17,923.40  14,098.75 

Total  17,923.40  14,098.75 

Geographic revenue

India  16,417.06  12,919.03 

Rest of the world  1,506.34  1,179.72 

Total  17,923.40  14,098.75

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by major service lines.

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Receivables, which are included in trade receivables  6,041.41  6,036.28 

Unbilled revenue  -    -   

Advances from customers  -    1.68

B. Trade receivables and contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and current liabilities from contracts with 

customers:

C. Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation

There are no unsatisfied long-term contracts / performance obligation that have impact on financial statements.  

The Company applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about remaining 

performance obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less.
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D. Reconciliation of revenue recognised:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Gross revenue  22,033.71  17,608.64 

Rebates, discounts  3,343.99  3,069.71 

Adjustment for credit notes:   766.32  440.18 

  17,923.40  14,098.75

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28  Other income

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Rental income  19.29  16.96 

Interest income

-  on fixed deposits designated as amortized cost  15.18  16.00 

-  on others  4.22  2.91 

Gain on sale/disposal of property plant and equipments  -  3.40 

Liabilities no longer required written back others  168.14  6.17 

Gain on cancellation of lease (net)  6.64  -   

Project income  -    96.69 

Miscellaneous income  161.65  64.48 

Total other income  375.13  206.61 

29  Cost of material consumed

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Raw material at the beginning  of the year  2,843.11  2,740.75 

Add: Purchases  11,907.00  6,742.06 

Less: Raw material at the end of the year  2,392.86  2,843.11 

Cost of raw material consumed  12,357.25  6,639.70 

30  Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the year

-Finished goods  1,844.81  5,122.12 

-Work-in-progress  1,579.33  1,374.28 

-Traded Finished goods  1,401.16  -   

 4,825.30  6,496.40 

Less: Inventories at the end of the year

-Finished goods  3,804.23  1,844.81 

-Work-in-progress  1,853.46  1,579.33 

-Traded Finished goods  1,180.36  1,401.16 

 6,838.05  4,825.30 

Net decrease/ (increase)  (2,012.75)  1,671.10



31  Employee benefits expense

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances  1,559.58  1,571.82 

Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI  91.99  96.03 

Gratuity and compensated absences expenses (Refer Note 37)  28.72  (14.90)

Staff welfare expenses  81.21  57.69 

Total employee benefits expense  1,761.50  1,710.64 

32  Finance costs

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Interest on borrowing  711.71  889.06 

Interest expense on security deposits  13.38  38.03 

Interest expense on lease liability  43.63  53.02 

Amortisation of forward premium  21.13  -   

Other borrowing cost  135.99  110.27 

Total finance costs  925.84  1,090.38 

33  Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)  236.95  273.20 

Depreciation on right of use (refer note 3)  147.33  116.26 

Amortization (refer Note 4)  0.54  3.94 

Total depreciation and amortization expense  384.82  393.40 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



34  Other expenses

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Electricity and water  65.93  62.98 

Business promotion  75.12  142.75 

Short term lease rent  9.63  5.60 

Repairs and maintenance - building  19.03  5.43 

Repairs and maintenance - machinery  35.29  29.31 

Repairs and maintenance - others  39.45  42.28 

Insurance  62.91  65.85 

Garmenting charges  177.71  21.88 

Bus hire charges  104.77  86.78 

Travel and conveyance  280.18  237.43 

Postage and courier  10.68  11.85 

Payments to auditors (Refer Note (i) below)*  22.00  21.56 

Printing & stationery  93.05  73.32 

Communication, broadband and internet expenses  21.16  26.23 

Legal and professional charges  87.45  81.45 

Advertisement  197.50  96.58 

Commission  191.23  146.45 

Loss on sale/disposal of fixed assets  3.30  -   

Foreign exchange fluctuation  115.40  4.60 

Miscellaneous expenses  27.92  20.06 

Bad debts  250.11  301.39 

Rates and taxes  114.76  25.86 

Purchases trading items  80.13  57.38 

Security service charges  34.03  32.09 

Project expenses  11.01  62.66 

Total other expenses  2,129.75  1,661.74 

*Note (i) : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of GST)

As auditor:

Statutory audit  18.50  16.50 

In other capacity:

Tax audit  1.00  3.00 

Certification fees  0.25  0.45 

Reimbursement of expenses  2.25  1.61 

Total  22.00  21.56 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



35  Income Tax Deferred Tax and 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(A)  Deferred tax relates to the following: 

(B)  Recognition of deferred tax asset to the extent of deferred tax liability

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Balance sheet

Deferred tax asset  1,385.18 1,235.33 

Deferred tax liabilities (2,012.32)   (2,053.10)   

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities), net  (627.14)  (817.77)
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Deferred tax assets

On provision for employee benefits  (20.22)  18.07

On provision for doubtful debts  (75.80)  (18.88)

On provision for bonus payable  (8.63)  -   

On unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward business losses (1,203.13) (1,101.67)

On lease liability ( 77.40) (96.72)

 1,385.18  1,235.33 

Deferred tax liabilities

On property, plant and equipment  269.73  310.51 

On valuation of brand/license  1,742.59  1,742.59 

2,012.32 2,053.10

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) (net)   627.14  817.77 

Deferred tax income  (190.63)  (874.77)

( )

^During the year ended March 31, 2022, in the absence of certainty of taxable income in future years, the Company has recorded the 
deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation / carry forward losses only to the extent of deferred tax liability. Further, during the year 
ended March 31, 2021, the Company had recorded the deferred tax assets on such items only to the extent of deferred tax liability. 

Income tax expense

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

 - Current tax taxes  -    -   

 - Deferred tax charge / (income)  (190.63)  (874.77)

Income tax expense  (190.63)  (874.77)

( )  C

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36  Earnings per share 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Loss attributable to equity holders  (221.32)  (104.55)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS*  8,25,96,519  8,25,96,519 

Basic loss per share (INR)  (0.27)  (0.13)

Diluted loss per share (INR)  (0.27)  (0.13)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 
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Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(A) Defined Contribution Plans

During the year, the Company has recognized the following amounts in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss –

Employers’ Contribution to Provident Fund  85.56  89.78

Employers’ Contribution to Employee State Insurance 6.43 6.24 

(B) Defined benefit plans

 a) Gratuity payable to employees (funded)

 b) Compensated absences for employees

i) Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate (per annum) 7.23% 6.85%

Rate of increase in Salary 4.00% 4.00%

"Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) " 12 12

Attrition rate 4.00% 4.00%

37  Employee benefits 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

ii) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year  317.47  344.87 

Interest cost  21.75  23.76 

Current service cost  25.95  27.85 

Benefits paid  (31.94)  (75.89)

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to change in demographic assumptions  (0.23)  9.84 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to change in financial assumptions  (7.31)  0.80 

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to experience  (14.33)  (13.76)

Present value of obligation at the end of the year  311.37  317.47 

iii) Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost  25.95  27.85 

Interest cost  21.75  23.76 

(Interest income)  (20.58)  (20.78)

Total expenses recognized in the Statement Profit and Loss  27.12  30.83 

iv) Expense recognized in the Statement of other comprehensive income

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period  (21.87)  (3.12)

Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income  0.08  0.02 

Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI  (21.79)  (3.10)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Employee’s gratuity fund



Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Employee’s gratuity fund

V) Assets and liabilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:

Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year  (311.37)  (317.47)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  313.43  300.41 

Funded status (Surplus / (deficit))  2.06  (17.06)

Unfunded net asset / (liability) recognized in Balance Sheet  2.06  (17.06)

vi) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year

Gratuity  22.24  43.01 

Vii)A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2022 

is as shown below: 

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate

1% increase 293.57  298.54

1% decrease  331.34  338.78 

Rate of increase in salary

1% increase  330.17  337.46

1% decrease 294.36  299.44

viii)Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

1st Following year  50.28  43.71 

2nd Following year  20.05  19.66 

3rd Following year  19.13  24.20 

4th Following year  34.48  27.27 

5th Following year  28.70  33.52 

Sum of years 6 to 10  173.44  153.27 

Sum of years 11 and above  208.57  237.74 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38 Leases where company is a lessee

(A) (ia) Changes in the carrying value of Right-of-use Assets - refer note 3

(ib) Changes in the Lease liabilities

Particulars Category of ROU Asset

 Building  Plant & Machinery Total

Balance as at April  2020  385.68  30.32  416.00 

Additions  125.27  3.86  129.13 

Lease Payments  (147.04)  (13.80) (160.84)

Balance as at March  2021  363.91  20.38  384.29 

Additions  108.90  2.60  111.50 

Lease Payments  (165.26)  (22.98)   (188.24)

Balance as at March 31, 2022  307.55  -    307.55 

1,

31,
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(ii) Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Current Lease Liabilities  173.60  177.29 

Non-current Lease Liabilities  133.95  207.00 

(iii)Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Less than one year  173.60  177.29 

One to five years  133.95  207.00 

More than five years  -    -   

Total  307.55  384.29 

As per Para B11 of Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosure, In preparing the maturity analyse an entity uses its judgement to 

determine an appropriate number of time bands.

(iv)Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Interest on Lease Liabilities  53.63  61.64 

Short-term leases expensed  9.63  5.60 

Total  63.26  67.24 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(v) Amounts recognised in statement of Cash Flows

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Total cash outflow for leases (195.93) (160.84)

      The Company has chosen to apply short term and low value exemption available in Ind AS 116 - Leases

39 Related Party Disclosures:
(A) Names of related parties and description of relationship as identified and certified by the Company:

Entity under common control
Maxwell Ventures Private Limited
Maxwell Capital Management Private Limited
Maxwell Entertainment Private Limited
Maxwell Retails Private Limited
Maxwell Health and Hygiene Private Limited
HYBO Hindustan
PAKO Hindustan
Pats Treasures
Unnati Ventures
Kanishk Capital Partners
K. 3 Realtors
Global Construction
Pathare Agro Farms
Shogun Chemicals Private Limited



Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Sunil J. Pathare (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Kapil J. Pathare (Whole Time Director)
Mr. Robin Banerjee (Independent Director)
Mr. Gopal Krishan Sehjpal (Independent Director)
Mr. Chetan Dolatrai Sheth (Independent Director)
Mrs. Meher Bruno Castelino (Independent Director)
Mr. Ashish Mandaliya (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary) upto May 15, 2020
Mr. Devendra Vyas (Chief Financial Officer) with effect from August 13, 2020
Mrs. Archana Mungunti (Company Secretary) with effect from September 02, 2020

Relatives of key management personnel
Smt. Lalita J. Pathare (Mother of Sunil J. Pathare and Kapil J. Pathare)
Mrs. Heena S. Pathare (Wife of Sunil J. Pathare)
Mrs. Ashwini K. Pathare (Wife of Kapil J. Pathare)
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Transactions under common control

     Hybo Hindustan  108.21  110.10 

     Kapil J. Pathare  5.56  5.06 

Directors loan

     Sunil J. Pathare  200.00  -   

     Kapil J. Pathare  30.00  -   

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Compensation of key management personnel

Salaries including bonuses

     Sunil J. Pathare  84.73  76.55 

     Kapil J. Pathare  70.92  63.96 

     Ashish Mandaliya  -    4.66 

     Devendra Vyas  46.22  35.85 

     Archana Mungunti  7.71  4.55 

Entity under common control

(B)  Details of transactions with related party in the ordinary course of business for the year ended:
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(C) Amount due to/from related party as on:

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

(i) Entity under common control 

Related parties payables 

     Hybo Hindustan  121.68  108.95 

     Pako Hindustan  -    0.06 

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Employee related payables

     Devendra Vyas  0.28  (0.22)

Other payables / receivables

     Sunil J. Pathare  (0.20)  (0.23)

     Kapil J. Pathare  1.39  0.12 

Director Loans payables

     Sunil J. Pathare  50.00  -   

^As the liabilities for defined benefit plans and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the 
amounts pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not separately included.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

40 Segment reporting

The Company has only one reporting segment i.e. Hosiery and others. Hence no separate segment information has been furnished 
herewith.

Particulars

    

Amount (INR) %

March 31, 2021

Amount (INR) %

Sale of products  17,923.40 98.61%  14,098.75 98.56%

Other operating revenue  251.91 1.39%  206.48 1.44%

 18,175.31 100.00%  14,305.23 100.00%

The Company categorizes its revenue based on delivery channel and further by geographical region, as summarized below, which as per 
management is most appropriate:

An analysis of the Company's revenue from operation is as follows:

March 31, 2022

(D) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties  

The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding 
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free except for borrowings and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company 
has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties ( March 31, 2021: Nil). This assessment 
is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 
party operates. 

Particulars

    

Amount (INR) %

March 31, 2021

Amount (INR) %

India  16,417.06 91.60%  12,919.03 91.63%

Outside India  1,506.34 8.40%  1,179.72 8.37%

 17,923.40 100.00%  14,098.75 100.00%

(A) Sale of products

March 31, 2022
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Particulars

    

Amount (INR) %

March 31, 2021

Amount (INR) %

India  10,497.18 100.00%  10,804.87 100.00%

Outside India  -   0.00%  -   0.00%

 10,497.18 100.00%  10,804.87 100.00%

(B) Non-current asset

March 31, 2022

41 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The fair value of other current financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables ,investments trade payables, short-
term borrowings and other financial liabilities approximate the carrying amounts because of the short term nature of these financial 
instruments.

The amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) of non-current financial assets consisting of security and term deposits are not 
significantly different from the carrying amount. 

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired include cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, term deposits, and 
other financial assets. 

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2022 were as follows

Particulars Note Amortised 
Cost

Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Fair value 
through 

OCI

Total 
fair 

value

Total 
carrying 

value

Financial assets

Investments 5  0.25  -    -    -    0.25 

Loans 6  9.86  -    -    -    9.86 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 7  99.98  -    -    -    99.98 

Other Current Financial Assets 14  14.87  -    0.05  0.05  14.92 

Trade receivable 10  6,041.41  -    -    -    6,041.41 

Cash and cash equivalents 11  133.82  -    -    -    133.82 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12  372.37  -    -    -    372.37 

Loans 13  8.09  -    -    -    8.09 

 6,680.65  -    0.05  0.05  6,680.70 

Financial liabilities

Non current Borrowings 19  1,002.88  -    -    -    1,002.88 

Non current lease laibility 38  133.95  -    -    -    133.95 

Current Borrowings 23  9,026.18  -    -    -    9,026.18 

Other non current financial liabilities 20  552.89  -    -    -    552.89 

Current lease liabilities 38  173.60  -    -    -    173.60 

Other current financial liabilities 25  319.49  -    -    -    319.49 

Trade payables 24  3,141.23  -    -    -    3,141.23 

 14,350.20  -    -    -   14,350.20 



The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2021 were as follows

Particulars Note Amortised 
Cost

Fair value 
through 
profit or 

loss

Fair value 
through 

OCI

Total 
fair 

value

Total 
carrying 

value

Financial assets

Investments 5  0.25  -    -    -    0.25 

Loans 6  6.98  -    -    -    6.98 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 7  97.78  -    -    -    97.78 

Other Current Financial Assets 14  9.83  -    -    -    9.83 

Trade receivable 10  6,036.28  -    -    -    6,036.28 

Cash and cash equivalents 11  429.41  -    -    -    429.41 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12  344.13  -    -    -    344.13 

Loan 13  7.34  -    -    -    7.34 

 6,932.00  -    -    -    6,932.00 

Financial liabilities

Non current Borrowings 19  312.58  -    -    -    312.58 

Non current lease laibility 38  207.00  -    -    -    207.00 

Current Borrowings 23  8,580.12  -    -    -    8,580.12 

Other non current financial liabilities 20  636.50  -    -    -    636.50 

Current lease liabilities 38  177.29  -    -    -    177.29 

Other current financial liabilities 25  365.91  -    7.41  7.41  373.32 

Trade payables 24  2,238.38  -    -    -    2,238.38 

 12,517.78  -    7.41  7.41  12,525.19 
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Fair value hierarchy

The following is the hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

•Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 •Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

No financial assets/liabilities have been valued using level 1 fair value measurements.
 
The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:



Level 3

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

Non current Borrowings  1,002.88  312.58 

Non current lease laibility  133.95  207.00 

Current Borrowings  9,026.18  8,580.12 

Other non current financial liabilities  552.89  636.50 

Current lease liabilities  173.60  177.29 

Trade payables  3,141.23  2,238.38 

Other current financial liabilities  319.49  365.90 

Level 2

Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI:

Derivatives forward liability  -    7.41 

 14,350.20  12,525.19 

Fair value measurement hierarchy of assets 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Level 3

Financial assets measured at amortized cost:

Investments  0.25  0.25 

Loans  9.86  6.98 

Other Non Current Financial Assets  99.98  97.78 

Other Current Financial Assets  14.87  9.83 

Trade receivable  6,041.41  6,036.28 

Cash and cash equivalents  133.82  429.41 

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  372.37  344.13 

Loan  8.09  7.34 

Level 2

Financial assets measured at fair value through OCI:

Derivatives forward assets  0.05  -   

 6,680.70  6,932.00 

Fair value measurement hierarchy of liabilities

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

96Annual Report 2021-22

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The details of outstanding derivative financial instruments is given below:

Particulars Underlying Nature of risk being hedged

Cash flow hedge, Designated & Effective Hedge

Forwards Currency Contracts Foreign currency non resident Exchange rate movement risk

borrowing (FCNRB)

Management has assessed that Cash and cash equivalents, Other balances with banks, Loans, Trade receivables, Other financial  
assets, Short term borrowings, Trade payables and Other financial liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying 
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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43  Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company is exposed to various financial risks. These risks are categorized into market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company's risk management is coordinated by the Board of Directors and focuses on securing long term and short term cash flows. 
The Company does not engage in trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.

(A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio 
of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. 

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and 
borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Effect on profit
before tax

Increase/ 
decrease in 
basis points

2022

INR +45  43.74 

INR -45  -43.74 

2021

INR +45  39.86 

INR -45  -39.86 

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional 
currency). 

Particulars

Trade Receivables USD  5.16  391.30  4.28  314.38 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Foreign 
currency in

 lakhs

Rs. in 
lakhs

Foreign currency 
in lakhs

Rs. in 
lakhs

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

In order to hedge exchange rate risk, the Company has a policy to hedge cash flows up to a specific tenure using forward exchange 
contracts. All hedging activities are carried out in accordance with the Company’s internal risk management policies, as approved by the 
Board of Directors, and in accordance with the applicable regulations where the Company operates.

The Company has also considered the effect of changes, if any, in both counterparty credit risk and own credit risk while assessing 
hedge effectiveness and measuring hedge ineffectiveness. The Company continues to believe that there is no impact on effectiveness 
of its hedges.
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange rate (or any other 
material currency), with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of 
monetary assets and liabilities). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. 

Particulars Effect on profit
before tax

2022 +5  25.81 

-5  -25.81 

2021 +5  21.38 

-5  -21.38 

Change in
US$ rate

(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Company’s receivables from deposits with landlords and other 
statutory deposits with regulatory agencies and also arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to 
prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account their financial 
position, past experience and other factors.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk of cash held with banks by dealing with highly rated banks and institutions and 
retaining sufficient balances in bank accounts required to meet a month’s operational costs. The Management reviews the bank 
accounts on regular basis and fund drawdowns are planned to ensure that there is minimal surplus cash in bank accounts. The 
Company does a proper financial and credibility check on the landlords before taking any property on lease and hasn’t had a single 
instance of non-refund of security deposit on vacating the leased property. The Company also in some cases ensure that the notice 
period rentals are adjusted against the security deposits and only differential, if any, is paid out thereby further mitigating the non-
realization risk. The Company does not foresee any credit risks on deposits with regulatory authorities. 

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Not due  2,947.25  2,793.80 

Less than 6 months  1,524.51  1,339.56 

6 months to 12 months  194.02  408.72 

beyond 12 months  1,375.63  1,494.20 

Total  6,041.41  6,036.28 

The ageing analysis for accounts receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls due:

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company 
manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. (For 
example: The key liquidity risk the Company can face is the risk of subscription fee refund. As per the Company policy, no refunds are 
allowed once a subscription has been taken and it is only in exceptional cases that fee is refunded with proper approvals from senior 
Management. The Management believes that the probability of a liquidity risk arising due to fee refund is not there. 
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities: 

Particulars Less than 
 1 year

1 to 5 
years

More than 
5 years

Total

March 31, 2022

Long-term borrowings  -    1,002.88  -    1,002.88 

Lease liabilities  173.60  133.95  -    307.55 

Other non current financial liability  -    552.89  -    552.89 

Short term borrowings  9,026.18  -    -    9,026.18 

Trade payables  3,141.23  -    -    3,141.23 

Other current financial liability  319.49  -    -    319.49 

 12,660.49  1,689.71  -    14,350.20 

Particulars Less than 
 1 year

1 to 5 
years

More than 
5 years

Total

March 31, 2021

Long-term borrowings  -    312.58  -    312.58 

Lease liabilities  177.29  207.00  -    384.29 

Other non current financial liability  -    636.50  -    636.50 

Short term borrowings  8,580.12  -    -    8,580.12 

Trade payables  2,238.38  -    -    2,238.38 

Other current financial liability  373.32  -    -    373.32 

 11,369.11  1,156.08  -    12,525.19 

44 Corporate social responsibility

45 Capital management

The provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable to Company.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, equity component of redeemable non 
cumulative non convertible preference shares, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The 
primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder valueand to ensure the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.

The Company has not distributed any dividend to its shareholders. The Company monitors gearing ratio i.e. total debt in proportion to 
its overall financing structure, i.e. equity and debt. Total debt comprises of non-current borrowing which represents borrowings from 
bank & others and liability component of redeemable non cumulative non convertible preference shares. The Company manages 
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the 
underlying assets.

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Total equity (i)  13,339.24  13,505.22 

Total non current borrowings (including liability portion of redeemable non cumulative 

non convertible preference shares)  10,336.60  9,276.98 

Less: cash and cash equivalents  133.82  429.41 

Total debt (ii)  10,202.78  8,847.57 

Overall financing (iii) = (i) + (ii) 23,542.02 22,352.79 

Gearing ratio (ii)/ (iii)  0.43  0.40 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022 and 

March 31, 2021.
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46 Additional regulatory information

47 Subsequent event

(B) Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

The Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Company, at anytime 
during the year ended  March 31 2022.

(C) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and intangibles during the year ended March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021.

(D) Details of Benami Property held

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(E) Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(F) Relationship  with Struck off Companies

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

(G) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period."

(H) Compliance with number of layers of companies 

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

(I) Compliance with  approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements 

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current year or previous 
year.

(J) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or(b)provide any 
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(K) Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered 
or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, 
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(L) Details of  Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

On May 30, 2022, the Board of Director of the Company have approved the Memorandum of Understanding for sale of leasehold 
rights in respect of Umbergaon Plot and building thereon, situated within the village limits of Daheri, TaIuka Umbergaon, Dist. Valsad 
- 396171. As a result of this being non adjusting subsequent event the financial statement have not been adjusted.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



Particulars As at 
March 31, 2022

As at 
March 31, 2021

Guarantees given by bank  102.77  102.77 

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts -

Income tax related  31.51  31.51 

Sales tax / central sales tax  1,111.15  1,010.94 

Letter of credits  652.95  713.36 

48   Contingencies and commitments

49 The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and postemployment, has 
received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of 
Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the 
changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued. The Company will 
assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes 
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

50 Due to COVlD-19 pandemic Government had declared lockdown, the Company had resumed operations gradually from May 23, 
2020. The Company has taken into consideration all possible impact on its financial performance and position using various internal 
and industry assessments including but not limited to assessments of sufficient liquidity, recoverability of dues, impact on revenue 
from operations etc. and has concluded that presently there is no material impact which is required to be recognised in the financial 
statements. Accordingly, no adjustements have been made to the financial statements. The Company continues to take measures to 
reduce impact of COVlD-19 on its operations and financial position.

51 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year’s classification / 
disclosure

52 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2022.
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As per our report of even date  

For M S K A & Associates 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:105047W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
VIP Clothing Limited 
CIN: L1810MH1991PLC059804

Amrish Vaidya
Partner
Membership No: 101739

Devendra Vyas
Chief Financial Officer
(M.No. ACA - 150498)

Sunil J. Pathare
Chairman &

Managing Director
(DIN: 00192182)

Kapil J. Pathare
Whole Time Director

(DIN: 01089517)

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2022

Archana Mungunti
Company Secretary
(M.No.ACS-31071)
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Equity Share capital

Redeemable Pref. Shares Capital 

Convertible Pref. Shares Capital 

Reserves & Surplus 

Misc exp. not written off  

Net Worth

Long term Debts

Net Asset Block

Total Income

Profit before tax

Taxation

Profit after  tax     

Dividend Rate on

Equity share

Redeemable Pref. Shares   

No of  Equity Shares (in Lakhs)

Face value of  Share-Equity 2

Preference

Earning per share  

Earning per share  

Book value per share  

Current Ratio

2019-20

1,652

-

-

12,007

-

13,659

-

10,923

17,554

(2,758)

(1,263)

(1,506)

-

-

825.96

2

100

(1.81)

(1.81)

16.54

1.50

2018-19

1,652

-

-

213,527

-

15,179

-

310,852

20,943

(651)

(32)

(641)

-

-

825.96

2

100

(0.75)

(0.75)

18.38

1.78

2017-18

1,652

-

-

214,199

-

15,851

-

311,130

22,366

(252)

46

(303)

-

-

825.96

2

100

(0.39)

(0.39)

19.19

1.81

2016-17

11,652

-

-

214,301

-

15,623

-

317,110

23,270

(610)

35

(751)

-

-

660.77

2

100

(0.97)

(0.97)

23.64

1.35

2015-16

1,322

-

-

8,012

-

9,334

-

6,153

19,514

(947)

46

(993)

-

-

660.77

2

100

(1.50)

(1.50)

14.13

1.31

2014-15

1,322

-

-

7,944

-

9,206

-

6,658

26,160

1,091

390

701

15.00%

5.00%

660.77

2

100

1.08

1.08

14.59

1.23

2013-14

1,262

395***

-

7,830

-

9,092

-

6,944

25,875

806

273

533

10.00%

5.00%

660.77

2

100

0.73

0.73

14.41

1.34

2012-13

1,262

1185

-

7,515

-

8,777

-

7,033

25,491

439

154

285

12.50%

5.00%

660.77

2

100

0.34

0.34

13.8

1.22

1. ` 330 Lakhs increased on account of  issue of  1,65,19,304 Equity shares at right issue @ ` 26/- (face value of  shares is 2/-)

2. Increase in securities premium account by ` 3,965 Lakhs on account of  Rights issue of  Shares and others on account of  effect has been give for the 
first time adoption of  IND AS as well as correction of  brand valuation and related DTL impact.

3. Effect has been give for the first time adoption of  IND AS and correction of  brand valuation. 

* ` 620.60 Lakhs 5% Redeemable Preference shares of  ` 100/- each bought back.

** ` 629.45 Lakhs 5% Redeemable Preference shares of  ` 100/- each bought back.

*** ` 790 Lakhs 5% Redeemable Preference shares of  ` 100/- each redeemed.

` 

2021-22

1,652

-

-

11,687

-

13,339

-

10,380

18,550

(412)

(191)

(221)

-

-

825.96

2

100

(0.27)

(0.27)

16.15

1.41

2020-21

1,652

-

-

11,853

-

13,505

-

10,653

14,512

(979)

(875)

(102)

-

-

825.96

2

100

(0.13)

(0.13)

16.35

1.44
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VIP CLOTHING LIMITED 

To,
Link Intime India Private Limited/Depository Participant
___________________________________________
___________________________________________
___________________________________________

Updation of Shareholders Information

I/We request you to record the following information against my/our Folio No./DP ID/Client ID:

General Information:

Folio No./DP ID/Client ID:

PAN:*

CIN/Registration No.:* (applicable to Corporate Shareholders)

Tel. No. with STD Code:

Mobile No.:

E-mail id:

*Self  attested copy of  the document(s) enclosed.

Bank Details:

IFSC: (11 digit)

MICR: (9 digit)

Bank A/c Type:

Name of  the Bank:

Bank Branch Address:

*A blank cancelled cheque is enclosed to enable verification of  bank details.

I/We hereby declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If  the transaction is delayed because of  incomplete or 
incorrect information, I/We would not hold the Company/RTA responsible. I/We undertake to inform any subsequent changes in the
above particulars as and when the changes take place. I/We understand that the above details shall be maintained till I/We hold the 
securities under the above mentioned Folio No.

Place:

Date:

_________________________

Signature of  Sole/First holder

Note:

Shareholders holding shares in physical mode and having Folio No(s) should provide the above information to our RTA, Link Intime 
India Private Limited. Shareholders holding 
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